
   

Mayor 
James Kacsh 
 

Council Members 
Kristin Carpenter 
Tim Joyce 
Tom Bailer 
Bret Bradford 
vacant 

David Reggiani 
James Burton 
 

City Manager 
Randy Robertson 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Summer Vacation 

 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  

SEPTEMBER 17, 2014 @ 7:00 PM   
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

 

   AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the republic for which it 
stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice for all.  
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Mayor James Kacsh, Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, Tom Bailer  
Bret Bradford, vacant, David Reggiani and James Burton  

 

  D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA…………………..……........…….…... (voice vote) 
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
 

1. Guest Speaker – Duane Hoskins of AKDoT&PF, Northern Region Planner II 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items…………………………………............ (3 minutes per speaker) 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions     (Harbor, HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 

 a. P&Z Resolution 14-04……………………………………………..……………………………… (page 1) 
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR………………………………………….…...…. (roll call vote) 
 

4. Ordinance 1121………………………………………………………………………………..………. (page 3) 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, amending section 2.20.010(d) of 
the Cordova Municipal Code to revise broadcast notification requirements for City elections from 
once in each month for three months prior to the election to continuously for 40 days prior to the 
election  

5. Council decision regarding property disposal…………………….…………………………..…….…. (page 6) 
6. Resolution 09-14-39…………………………………………………………………………………. (page 10) 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a five (5) year lease of Lots 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite and all improvements 
thereon with the Cordova Chamber of Commerce 

 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

7. Public Hearing Minutes 09-03-14…………………………………..………....………....................... (page 21) 
8. Regular Meeting Minutes 09-03-14…………………………………..………....……….................... (page 22) 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS - none 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS  
 

9. Mayor’s Report 
10. Manager’s Report  

a. Cordova Center update report…………………………………………………………….…….. (page 28) 
11. City Clerk’s Report  

a. 2009 City Building Committee compilation of resolution/memo/minutes/report, etc………..… (page 33) 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

12. Resolution 09-14-37……………………………………………………………............ (voice vote)(page 56) 
 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, calling a special election to be 
 held in the city on November 4, 2014, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the 
 city a proposition for the issuance of general obligation indebtedness to finance improvements to 
 City of Cordova streets, and other matters to be determined by council 

http://wdfw.wa.gov/fishing/salmon/graphics/coho.jpg


   

13. Resolution 09-14-38………………………………………………………………...…. (voice vote)(page 58) 
 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City of Cordova 
 to issue general obligation bonds in the principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000 to finance 
 improvements to City of Cordova streets and to submit the question of the issuance of such debt 
 to the qualified voters of the city at a November 4, 2014 special city election; and declaring the 
 intent of the City of Cordova to reimburse original expenditures for city street improvements 
 started after the date of this resolution but prior to the issuance of the general obligation bonds 

14. Resolution 09-14-40………………………………………………………………........ (voice vote)(page 60) 
 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, approving a contract amendment 
 with Dawson Construction for a limited notice to proceed for Phase 2, Stage 2 of the Cordova 
 Center project for a sum of $4,578,752 

15. Resolution 09-14-41……………………………………………………………............ (voice vote)(page 67) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into a designated fund agreement with the Alaska Community Foundation for the purpose of 
creating a fund to receive charitable donations for the Cordova Center capital campaign 

 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

16. Council election to fill vacancy of City Council Seat E………………………...….…... (voice vote)(page 73) 
 Letters of interest received from: 

a. Stephen Phillips………………………………………………………………..…… (page 74) 
b. Dan Reum……………………………………………………………………...…… (page 75) 
c. Robert Beedle…………………………………………………………………….… (page 76) 
d. Josh Hallquist.……………………………………………………………………… (page 77) 
e. Hayley Hoover……………………………………………………………………… (page 78) 
f. Adrian Smith…………………………………………………………………..…… (page 79) 

 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 

17. Pending Agenda, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists………………….............…….….. (page 80) 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

18. Council Comments 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

19. Performance Deed of Trust negotiation 
20. Attorney update regarding PWSSC land disposal negotiation 
21. Cordova Center finances 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 
 
 
 

 The SilverS are iN…Cordova    
 

 
Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 

adverse effect upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided 
that the person may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) 

Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 
If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 

Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net 

http://www.cityofcordova.net/


Memorandum 

 
To:  City Council 
From:  Planning Staff & Commission 
Date:  9/10/14 
Re:  Capital Improvement List  
    

 
PART I – BACKGROUND 
 
The Planning Commission is required by the City Code to: 
 
Submit annually to the city council, not less than ninety days prior to the beginning of the budget year, a 

list of recommended capital improvements which in the opinion of the commission are necessary or 

desirable to be constructed during the forthcoming three-year period. Such list shall be arranged in order 

of preference, with recommendations as to which projects shall be constructed in which year (CMC 
3.40.080 B). 
 
9/9/14 – Planning Commission discussed and amended the Capital Improvement List and approved 

Resolution 14-04 at their Regular Meeting: 
 
 M/Baenen S/Greenwood to approve Resolution 14-04; a resolution of the Planning Commission of the 

City of Cordova, Alaska, recommending a Capital Improvement List to the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska. 
Upon voice vote, motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Bailer, Reggiani 
Nay: None 
Absent: None 

 
Following this memo is Resolution 14-04. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Capital Improvement List  

Page 1 of 1 

1



2



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    September 10, 2014 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      Ordinance 1121 
 

 
After the March 2014 Regular City Election, there was concern regarding the Code provisions 
about required Election notices. Staff drafted and then council adopted Ordinance 1116 which 
allowed for a longer timeframe and a more comprehensive plan of election advertising than was 
previously required by the Code. Unfortunately, often Code changes such as Ordinance 1116 need 
to be put into effect to see how they will play out in reality vs. how good them seem on paper. In 
this instance, this change was too restrictive to allow for a shortened timeframe in calling for a 
special election. City Attorney Holly Wells has drafted this change (Ord 1121) to Cordova 
Municipal Code section 2.20.010(D) in order to allow for the special election on November 4, 
2014, and also to allow in the future, other Council’s to call special elections on shorter notice than 
this restrictively written section (Ord 1116) allows for now.  
 
Recommended Motion:  Move to adopt Ordinance 1121 
 
Required Action:  Majority voice vote on first reading 
  
  
  

3



 
CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

ORDINANCE 1121 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AMENDING SECTION 2.20.010(D) OF THE CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE TO REVISE 

BROADCAST NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY ELECTIONS FROM ONCE IN 

EACH MONTH FOR THREE MONTHS PRIOR TO THE ELECTION TO CONTINUOUSLY 

FOR 40 DAYS PRIOR TO THE ELECTION  
 

  

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 1116 on April 16, 2014, requiring the City of Cordova, 

Alaska (“City”) to publish notice via radio and television, if available, once in each of the three months 

before the election in order to increase awareness of elections; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to encourage and facilitate participation in City elections to the 

greatest extent possible; but 

 

WHEREAS, the three-month notice period restricts the City’s ability to engage voters in time sensitive 

matters; and 

 

WHEREAS, a continuous 40-day publication of notice would likely provide more awareness of an 

upcoming election than a short notice period provided once in each of the three months before the election. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, that: 
 

Section 1. Section 2.20.010 D of the Cordova Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

 

2.20.010 Notice of election. 

 

A. The city clerk shall publish notice of each election in one or more newspapers of general 

circulation at least once in each of the three calendar weeks immediately preceding the calendar 

week of the election. For special elections, in addition to published notice as set forth in the 

preceding sentence, the city clerk shall give such other notice to the public as may be required by 

the laws of the state or by resolution of the city council. Each notice of election shall include:  

1. The type of election, regular or special; 

2. The date of election; 

3. The polling place and hours the polls will be open; 

4. The offices to which candidates are to be elected; 

5. The subjects of propositions to be voted upon; 

6. Voter qualifications; and 

7. The dates and manner of absentee voting. 

 

[ADDED LANGUAGE BOLD AND UNDERLINED, REMOVED LANGUAGE STRICKEN OUT] 
Ordinance 1121 
Page 1 of 2 

 
4



 
B. In addition to the above notices, the city clerk shall publish in full every City Charter 

amendment, every ordinance and every other question which is to be submitted at an election, except 

that a referred ordinance which was published in full after passage not more than eight weeks and 

at least four weeks before the election, in accordance with City Charter Sections 1-6(5) and 10-9, 

need not be published in full again.  

 

C. The city clerk shall notify at least one local radio station and one television scanner channel, 

if such stations and channels are in existence, of: 

1.  The type of election 

2.  The date of election  

3.  The polling place, and 

4.  The polling place hours 

5.  The location of the published notices required under subsections A and B and in Section 

2.24.010 of this title.  

 

D. The radio and television scanner channel notifications required in subsection C shall be 

made for the forty days prior to the regular election and any special election. once in December 

of the year preceding the regular election; once in January of the year of the regular election; and 

once in February of the year of the regular election. For special elections, these notifications shall 

be made at least once in each of the three months immediately before the election; including the 

month of the election if the special election is held on or after the eighth day of a month. 
 

 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication.  This 
ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
and published within ten (10) days after its passage. 
 
1st reading: September 17, 2014 
2nd reading and public hearing: October 1, 2014 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 1st DAY OF OCTOBER, 2014 
 
  
        ________________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor  
 

  Attest: 
  
 ________________________________ 

   Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

[ADDED LANGUAGE BOLD AND UNDERLINED, REMOVED LANGUAGE STRICKEN OUT] 
Ordinance 1121 
Page 2 of 2 

 
5



Memorandum 

 
To:  Planning Commission 
From:  Planning Staff 
Date:  9/10/14 
Re:  Disposal of Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite  
    

 
PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Requested Action: Choose Disposal Method 
Lot, Block, Survey: Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite, Plat 1-11 
Parcel Numbers: 02-060-772, 02-060-773, 02-060-774 
Zoning:  Central Business District 
Location Map:  Attachment A 
 
PART II – BACKGROUND 
 
The lots and improvements thereon have been leased to the Cordova Chamber of Commerce since 1999. 
When the leases expired, they would begin a new lease with the City. The current lease will expire on 
February 5, 2015. The Chamber would like to renew their lease with the City (see Letter of Interest 
following this memo). 
 
There have been no problems related to this lease; payments have always been timely and conditions of the 
lease have been met. 
 
Planning Staff notified all City departments about this disposal and has received no comments/concerns 
about continuing to lease the premises to the Chamber. 
 
9/9/14 - Planning Commission Regular Meeting Unapproved Minutes: 
 
 M/McGann S/Greenwood to recommend to City Council disposal by lease of Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original 

Townsite and all improvements thereon by negotiating an agreement with the Cordova Chamber of Commerce. 
Upon voice vote, motion passed 7-0. 
Yea: Greenwood, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt, Bailer, Reggiani 
Nay: None 
Absent: None 

 
PART III – APPLICABLE CRITERIA 
 
5.22.040 DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – Application to lease or purchase. 
 E. The planning commission shall review the application, and recommend to the city council whether 

the city should accept the application, offer the real property interest for disposal by one of the 

competitive procedures in Section 5.22.060, or decline to dispose of the real property interest. 

 

5.22.060 DISPOSAL OF CITY REAL PROPERTY – Methods of disposal for fair market value. 
 A. In approving a disposal of an interest in city real property for fair market value, the council shall 

select the method by which the city manager will conduct the disposal from among the following: 

1. Negotiate an agreement with the person who applied to lease or purchase the property; 
Disposal of Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite  

Page 1 of 3 

6



2. Invite sealed bids to lease or purchase the property; 

3. Offer the property for lease or purchase at public auction; 

4. Request sealed proposals to lease or purchase the property. 

 
PART IV – STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommend City Council to dispose of the property by lease and direct negotiation (Method 1). 
 
PART V – SUGGESTED MOTION 
 
“I move the City Manager dispose by lease Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite and all 
improvements thereon by negotiating an agreement with the Cordova Chamber of Commerce.” 
 
  

Disposal of Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite  

Page 2 of 3 

7



Attachment A 
 

 

Disposal of Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite  

Page 3 of 3 

8



9



Memorandum 

 
To:  City Council 
From:  Planning Staff 
Date:  9/10/14 
Re:  Lease for Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite 
  

 
PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Requested Action: Approve Resolution 09-14-39 
Lot, Block, Survey: Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite 
Parcel Numbers: 02-060-772, 02-060-773, 02-060-774 
Zoning:  Central Business District 
 
PART II – BACKGROUND 
 
The new lease will be for a period of five years. Attached following this memo and resolution is the 
lease (Attachment A). In the past there was an attachment to the lease which outlined the 
responsibilities for the Chamber and the City. This attachment has now been incorporated into the 
lease. 
  
There have been no problems related to this lease; payments have always been timely and 
conditions of the lease have been met. 

 
PART III – STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommend that the City Council approve Resolution 09-14-39. 
 
PART IV – SUGGESTED MOTION 
 
“I move to approve Resolution 09-14-39.” 
 
 

Lease for Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite 

Page 1 of 1 
10



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
 RESOLUTION 09-14-39 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A FIVE (5) YEAR LEASE OF 
LOTS 3, 4, AND 5, BLOCK 8, ORIGINAL TOWNSITE AND ALL IMPROVEMENTS 

THEREON WITH THE CORDOVA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 
 WHEREAS, the current lease with the Cordova Chamber of Commerce will expire on February 
5, 2015 and this new lease would continue their tenancy for five years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the lease is described as Lot 3, 4, and 5, Block 8, Original Townsite and all 
improvements thereon; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the annual rental rate will be One Dollar ($1.00); and 
  

WHEREAS, the lease is hereto attached as Attachment A. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Cordova 
hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to renew the lease on the property to the Cordova Chamber 
of Commerce in accordance with the terms in the Lease. The form and content of the Lease now before 
this meeting is in all respects authorized, approved and confirmed by this resolution, and the City Manager 
hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Lease reflecting the terms in the 
Lease on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before this meeting but with such 
changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein as he shall deem necessary, desirable or 
appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, 
modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said documents now before this 
meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said documents, the City Manager hereby is 
authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to execute all documents as may be 
necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Lease. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF SEPTMEBER, 2014 
       

 
 ____________________________________ 
 James Kacsh, Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 ____________________________________
 Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

11



ATTACHMENT A 
 

CITY OF CORDOVA 
Cordova, Alaska 

 
LEASE 

 
THIS LEASE (“Lease”) by and between the CITY OF CORDOVA ("Landlord"), a municipal corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Alaska (the "City"), and the CORDOVA CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE, an Alaska nonprofit corporation (“Tenant”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, City owns that certain parcel of land and all improvements thereon in Cordova, Alaska 
described as Lots 3, 4 & 5, Block 8, Original Townsite, Plat 1-11, Cordova Recording District, Third Judicial District, 
State of Alaska (“Premises”); and  
 

WHEREAS, Tenant desires to lease the Premises from City, and City desires to lease the Premises to Tenant, 
on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Cordova City Council (“Council”) has approved the lease of the Premises from City to 

Tenant  in accordance with Cordova City Charter §5-17 and Chapter 5.22 of the Cordova Municipal Code (“Code” or 
“CMC”). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants of the parties hereto, it is 

agreed as follows: 
 

1. LEASE OF PREMISES   
 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, City hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases 
from the City, the Premises.  
 

2. LEASE TERM 
 

The term of this Lease shall be five (5) years, commencing on January 1st, 2015 (“Commencement Date”) 
and expiring on December 31, 2019, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of this Lease. 
 

3. RENT 
 

A. Base Rent.  The rent during the term of this Lease shall be One Dollar ($1.00) (“Base Rent”), which 
shall be due and payable in advance on the Commencement Date.  Base Rent shall be paid to the City in lawful money 
of the United States without abatement, deduction or set-off for any reason whatsoever, at the address provided for 
notice to the City set forth in Section 20.E of this Lease, or at any other place that the City may from time to time 
direct in writing.  Base Rent shall be paid promptly when due without notice or demand therefor.  The parties intend 
the Base Rent to be absolutely net to the City.  All costs, expenses and obligations of every kind and nature whatsoever 
in connection with or relating to the Premises shall be the obligation of, and shall be paid by, Tenant.  
 

B. Additional Charges.  In addition to the Base Rent, Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Tenant is 
obligated to pay and shall pay, before delinquency and without reimbursement, all costs, expenses and obligations of 
every kind and nature whatsoever in connection with or relating to the Premises or the activities conducted on the 
Premises, including without limitation those costs, expenses and obligations identified in Section 7 and all other sums, 
costs, expenses, taxes (including 6% sales tax, which shall be paid by Tenant at the same time Tenant makes its 
payment of Base Rent to the City) and other payments that Tenant assumes or agrees to pay under the provisions of 
this Lease (“Additional Charges”). 

 
Without limiting in any way Tenant’s payment obligations, the City shall have the right, but not the 

obligation, at all times during the Lease term, to pay any charges levied or imposed upon the Premises that remain 
unpaid after the same have become due and payable, and the amount paid, plus the City’s reasonable expenses, shall 

 
  Page 1 of 9 12



ATTACHMENT A 
 

be Additional Rent due from Tenant to City, with interest thereon at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the 
date of payment thereof by the City until repayment thereof by Tenant. 

 
C. Late Penalty Provision.  Rent not paid within ten (10) days after the due date shall be assessed a 

late charge of ten percent (10%) of the delinquent amount; such charge shall be considered liquidated damages and 
shall be due and payable as Additional Rent.  In the event the late charge assessment above exceeds the maximum 
amount allowable by law, the amount assessed will be adjusted to the maximum amount allowable by law. 

 
 D. Security Deposit.  Upon execution of this Lease, the City may require Tenant to deposit with the 
City an amount equal to two months’ rent (the “Security Deposit”).  The Security Deposit shall be held by the City as 
security for the faithful performance by Tenant of all of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease.   If Tenant fails to pay 
the Base Rent or a portion thereof, or otherwise defaults with respect to any provision of this Lease after notice and 
beyond the expiration of any applicable cure period, the City may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Security 
Deposit for:  
 
  (i)  the payment of any Rent or other sum in default;  
 
  (ii)  the payment of any other sum to which the City may become obligated by reason of Tenant's 
default; or  
 
  (iii)  to compensate the City for any loss or damage which the City may suffer thereby, including 
but not limited to any costs associated with moving and storage of Tenant’s personal property (if any) remaining on 
the Premises beyond termination of the Lease.  
 

The City may commingle the Security Deposit with funds held in the City’s own accounts, including accounts 
in which the City keeps other security deposits.  If Tenant performs all of its obligations under this Lease, the Security 
Deposit, or so much thereof as has not been used, applied or retained by the City in accordance with this Section, shall 
be returned to Tenant, at the expiration of the term, and subject to Tenant relinquishing possession of the Premises, 
without payment of interest or other increment for its use, within 30 days after Tenant’s vacation of the Premises.  
 

4. USES AND CONDITION OF PREMISES 
 
A. Authorized Uses.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to the day to day operations of the Cordova 

Chamber of Commerce which will also include but not be limited to major community events operated by Tenant, 
such as the Iceworm Festival, Shorebird Festival, the Fourth of July Celebration and the Christmas Kickoff, and the 
Premises shall not, without prior written consent of City, be used for any other purposes.  Tenant shall staff the 
Premises with Tenant personnel or volunteers on the following schedule: 

(i)  Monday through Friday, excluding December 13 through January 13, four hours per day. 
 (ii)  Weekends during major community events (such as Iceworm Festival, Shorebird Festival), 

hours scheduled as needed. 
 

B. Inspections.  The City and its authorized representatives and agents shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to enter the Premises at all reasonable times to inspect the use and condition of the Premises; to serve, post 
or keep posted any notices required or allowed under the provisions of this Lease, including notices of non-
responsibility for liens; and to do any act or thing necessary for the safety or preservation of the Premises.  The City 
shall not be liable in any manner for any inconvenience, disturbance, loss of business, nuisance or other damage arising 
out of the City’s entry onto the Premises, except for damage resulting directly from the acts of the City or its authorized 
representatives or agents.   
 

C. Compliance with Laws.  Tenant shall maintain and repair the Premises in compliance with all 
applicable laws, regulations, ordinances, rules, orders, permits, licenses and other authorizations.  Tenant shall not use 
or permit the use of the Premises for any purpose prohibited by law or which would cause a cancellation or increase 
in premium of any insurance policy covering the Premises.  Tenant shall not leave the Premises unoccupied or vacant 
without the City’s prior written consent.  Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material (as defined in 
Section 9.B of this Lease) to be brought upon, kept, or used in, on or about the Premises except for such Hazardous 
Material as is necessary to conduct Tenant’s authorized uses of the Premises.  Any such Hazardous Material brought 

 
  Page 2 of 9 13



ATTACHMENT A 
 

upon, kept, or used in, on or about the Premises shall be used, kept, stored, and disposed of in a manner that complies 
with all environmental laws and regulations applicable to Hazardous Material.  Tenant shall not cause or allow the 
release or discharge of any other materials or substances that are known to pose a hazard to the environment or human 
health. 
 

D. Tenant’s Acceptance of Premises.  Tenant has inspected the Premises to its complete satisfaction 
and is familiar with its condition, and the City makes no representations or warranties with respect thereto, including 
but not limited to the condition of the Premises or its suitability or fitness for any use Tenant may make of the Premises.  
Tenant accepts the Premises AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS.  No action or inaction by the Council, the 
City Manager, or any other officer, agent or employee of the City relating to or in furtherance of the lease of the 
Premises shall be deemed to constitute an express or implied representation or warranty that the Premises, or any part 
thereof, is suitable or usable or any specific purpose whatsoever.  Any such action or inaction shall be deemed to be 
and constitute performance of a discretionary policy and planning function only, and shall be immune and give no 
right of action as provided in Alaska Statute §9.65.070, or any amendment thereto.  
 

E. The City many terminate this Lease for any or no reason upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to 
Tenant. 

 
5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 
Tenant represents and warrants to the City that Tenant is not delinquent in the payment of any obligation to 

the City, and Tenant has not previously breached or defaulted in the performance of a material contractual or legal 
obligation to the City, which breach or default has not been remedied or cured. 

 
6. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBLETTING; SUBORDINATION 

 
Tenant shall not assign or otherwise transfer this Lease or any interest herein or sublet the Premises or any 

portion thereof, or permit the occupancy of any part of the Premises by any other person or entity, without the prior 
written consent of the City, which consent the City may withhold in its absolute discretion.  The City shall not be 
required to subordinate this Lease or the City’s interest in the Premises to the interest of any other person or entity. 
 

7. OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE, UTILITIES, TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 
 

A. Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, be solely responsible for (i) electric utility service 
to the Premises; (ii) telephone, facsimile and Internet service to the Premises; (iii) regular cleaning of the public 
restrooms on the Premises either by Tenant personnel, volunteers, or outside contractors; (iv) cleaning supplies for 
the interior of the Premises; (v) minor maintenance items (painting, minor repairs, etc. unrelated to the furnace) not to 
exceed $500.00 per calendar year; (vi) removal of snow from the access ramp leading to the Premises.  
 

B. City shall, at City’s sole cost and expense, be solely responsible for (i) heating fuel for the Premises; 
(ii) maintenance and repair of the furnace in the Premises; (iii) major maintenance or repair to the building on the 
Premises; (iv) sewer, water and trash collection service to the Premises; (v) routine maintenance and snow removal 
for the parking area on the Premises; (vi) insurance, (fire/liability) on the Premises as for other City-owned structures; 
and (vii) building security for the Premises as for other City-owned buildings.  
 

8. LIENS 
 

Tenant will suffer no lien or other encumbrance to attach to the Premises, including without limitation 
mechanic’s or materialman’s liens, sales tax liens under CMC §5.40.125, or property tax liens under CMC §5.36.260.  
If the City posts any notice of non-responsibility on the Premises, Tenant will ensure that the notice is maintained in 
a conspicuous place. 
 

9. INDEMNIFICATION  
 

A. General Indemnification.  Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City and its authorized 
representatives, agents, officers, and employees harmless from and against any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, 

 
  Page 3 of 9 14



ATTACHMENT A 
 

penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or expenses (including, without limitation, 
attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert fees) resulting from, arising out of, or related 
to Tenant’s occupation or use of the Premises or the occupation or use of the Premises by Tenant’s employees, agents, 
servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees or invitees, including but not limited to all claims and 
demands arising out of any labor performed, materials furnished, or obligations incurred in connection with any 
improvements, repairs, or alterations constructed or made on the Premises and the cost of defending against such 
claims, including reasonable attorney fees.  In the event that such a lien is recorded against the Premises, Tenant shall, 
at Tenant’s sole expense within ninety (90) days after being served with written notice thereof, protect the City against 
said lien by filing a lien release bond or causing the release of such lien. 
 

B. Environmental Indemnification.  Tenant has had full opportunity to examine the Premises for the 
presence of any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) and accepts the Premises AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL 
FAULTS.  Tenant releases the City and its authorized representatives, agents, officers, and employees from any and 
all actions, suits, claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, or other costs or 
expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and consultant and expert 
fees) arising during or after the term of this Lease, that result from the use, keeping, storage, or disposal of Hazardous 
Material in, on or about the Premises by Tenant, or that arise out of or result from Tenant’s occupancy or use of the 
Premises or the use or occupancy of the Premises by Tenant’s employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, 
subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees or authorized representatives.  This release includes, without limitation, any and 
all costs incurred due to any investigation of the Premises or any cleanup, removal, or restoration mandated by a 
federal, state, or local agency or political subdivision, or by law or regulation.  Tenant agrees that it shall be fully 
liable for all costs and expenses related to the use, storage, and disposal of Hazardous Material generated, kept or 
brought on the Premises by Tenant, its employees, agents, servants, customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-
lessees, invitees or authorized representatives.  

 
Tenant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City and its authorized representatives, agents, officers, and 

employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, 
damages, costs, or expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and 
consultant and expert fees) of whatever kind or nature, known or unknown, contingent or otherwise, arising in whole 
or in part from or in any way related to (i) the presence, disposal, release, or threatened release of any such Hazardous 
Material which is on or from the Premises, soil, water, ground water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons, 
animals, or otherwise; (ii) any personal injury or property damage arising out of or related to such Hazardous Material; 
(iii) any lawsuit brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such Hazardous Material; 
and (iv) any violation of any laws applicable to such Hazardous Material; provided, however, that the acts giving rise 
to the claims, demands, penalties, fines, judgments, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses arise in whole 
or in part from the use of, operations on, or activities on the Premises by Tenant or its employees, agents, servants, 
customers, contractors, subcontractors, sub-lessees, invitees, or authorized representatives.  

 
As used in this Lease, “Hazardous Material” means any substance which is toxic, ignitable, reactive, or 

corrosive or which is regulated by any federal, state or local law or regulation, as now in force or as hereafter may be 
amended from time to time, relating to the protection of human health or the environment, as well as any judgments, 
orders, injunctions, awards, decrees, covenants, conditions, or other restrictions or standards relating to the same.  
“Hazardous Material” includes any and all material or substances that are defined as “hazardous waste,” “extremely 
hazardous waste,” or a “hazardous substance” under any such law or regulation. 
 

10. REMOVAL OF PROPERTY 
 

Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, at the option of the City, Tenant shall remove from the 
Premises, at Tenant’s sole expense, all property Tenant has placed or caused to be placed on the Premises.  Tenant 
shall repair any damage to the Premises caused by such removal and return the Premises as near as possible to its 
original condition as existed on the Commencement Date.  All property which is not promptly removed by Tenant 
pursuant to the City’s request and in any event within thirty (30) days of the date of expiration or termination of this 
Lease may be removed, sold, destroyed or otherwise disposed of in any manner deemed appropriate by the City, all 
at Tenant’s sole expense, and Tenant hereby agrees to pay the City for such expenses.  Notwithstanding any provision 
to the contrary in this Lease, all petroleum, fuel, or chemical storage tanks installed in or on the Premises during the 
term of this Lease shall remain the property of the Tenant and, upon expiration or earlier termination of the Lease and 

 
  Page 4 of 9 15



ATTACHMENT A 
 

upon request of the City, Tenant shall remove any and all such tanks and any and all contaminated soil and other 
materials from the Premises, all at Tenant's sole expense. 
 

11. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

A. Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default and a breach of this Lease 
by the Tenant: 

 
(i) The failure to make payment when due of any installment of Base Rent, Additional Charges or of 

any other sum herein specified to be paid by the Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure to pay any taxes or assessments due from the Lessee to the City and in any way related 

to this Lease, the Premises, any improvements, or the Lessee’s activities or business conducted thereon, including but 
not limited to any real property, personal property or sales taxes; 

 
(iii) An assignment for the benefit of Lessee’s creditors or the filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition 

by or against Lessee under any law for the purpose of adjudicating Lessee a bankrupt, or for extending the time for 
payment, adjustment, or satisfaction of Lessee’s liabilities, or for reorganization, dissolution, or arrangement on 
account of or to prevent bankruptcy or insolvency, unless the assignment or proceeding, and all consequent orders, 
adjudications, custodies, and supervision are dismissed, vacated or otherwise permanently stated or terminated within 
thirty (30) days after the assignment, filing or other initial event; 

 
(iv) The appointment of a receiver or a debtor-in-possession to take possession of the Premises (or any 

portion thereof) or of Lessee’s interest in the leasehold estate (or any portion thereof) or of Lessee’s operations on the 
Premises (or any portion thereof) by reason of Lessee’s insolvency; 

 
(v)  The abandonment or vacation of the Premises or any portion thereof; 
 
(vi) Execution, levy or attachment on Lessee’s interest in this Lease or the Premises, or any portion 

thereof; 
 
(vii) The breach or violation of any statutes, laws, regulations, rules or ordinances of any kind applicable 

to Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; or 
 
(viii) The failure to observe or perform any covenant, promise, agreement, obligation or condition set 

forth in this Lease, other than the payment of rent, if such failure shall not be cured within ten (10) days after written 
notice has been given to Lessee.  Notices given under this subsection shall specify the alleged breach and the applicable 
Lease provision and demand that the Lessee perform according to the terms of the Lease.  No such notice shall be 
deemed a forfeiture or termination of this Lease unless the City expressly makes such election in the notice. 

 
B. Remedies.  If the Lessee breaches any provision of this Lease, in addition to all other rights and 

remedies the City has at law or in equity, the City may do one or more of the following:  
 

(i) Distrain for rent due any of Lessee’s personal property which comes into the City’s possession.  This 
remedy shall include the right of the City to dispose of Lessee’s personal property in a commercially reasonable 
manner.  Lessee agrees that compliance with the procedures set forth in the Alaska Uniform Commercial Code with 
respect to the sale of property shall be a commercially reasonable disposal. 

 
(ii) Re-enter the Premises, take possession thereof, and remove all property from the Premises.  The 

property may be removed and stored at Tenant’s expense, all without service of notice or resort to legal process, which 
Tenant waives, and without the City becoming liable for any damage that may result unless the loss or damage is 
caused by the City’s negligence in the removal or storage of the property.  No re-entry by the City shall be deemed an 
acceptance of surrender of this Lease.  No provision of this Lease shall be construed as an assumption by the City of 
a duty to re-enter and re-let the Premises upon Tenant’s default.  If Tenant does not immediately surrender possession 
of the Premises after termination by the City and upon demand by the City, the City may forthwith enter into and upon 

 
  Page 5 of 9 16



ATTACHMENT A 
 

and repossess the Premises and expel Lessee without being deemed guilty in any manner of trespass and without 
prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise be used for arrears of rent or breach of covenant; 
 

(iii) Declare this Lease terminated;  
 

(iv) Recover, whether this Lease is terminated or not, reasonable attorney’s fees and all other expenses 
incurred by the City by reason of the default or breach by Tenant;  
 

(v) Recover an amount to be due immediately upon breach equal to the sum of all rent, Additional 
Charges and other payments for which Tenant is obligated under the Lease;  

 
(vi) Recover the costs of performing any duty of Tenant in this Lease; 

 
(vii) Collect any and all rents due or to become due from subtenants or other occupants of the Premises. 

 
12. SUBSIDENCE 

 
The City shall not be responsible for any washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling or reliction neither to the 

Premises, nor for any injury caused thereby to the property of the Tenant or any sublessee, or that of any other person.  
The City is not obligated to replace, refill, or improve any part of the Premises during Tenant's occupancy in the event 
of such washout, subsidence, avulsion, settling, or reliction. 

 
13. VACATION BY TENANT  

 
Upon the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, Tenant shall peaceably vacate the Premises and the 

Premises shall be returned to the City by Tenant together with any alterations, additions or improvements made after 
the Commencement Date, unless the City requests that they be removed from the Premises.  Upon such vacation, 
Tenant shall remove from the Premises any items of personal property brought on to the Premises.  Any such property 
not removed from the Premises within thirty (30) days of the expiration or termination of this Lease shall become the 
property of the City at no cost or charge to the City, and may be removed, sold, destroyed or otherwise disposed of in 
any manner deemed appropriate by the City, all at Tenant’s sole expense, and Tenant hereby agrees to pay the City 
for such expenses.   

 
14. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

 
The City reserves the right to designate and grant rights-of-way and utility easements across the Premises 

without compensation to Tenant or any other party, including the right of ingress and egress to and from the Premises 
for the construction, operation and maintenance of utilities and access, provided that Tenant shall be compensated for 
the taking or destruction of any improvements on the Premises.  Tenant shall be responsible for requesting a rental 
adjustment to reflect any reduction in the value of the Premises.  
 

15. SIGNS 
 

No signs or other advertising symbols, canopies, or awnings shall be attached to or painted on or within the 
Premises without approval of the City Manager first being obtained; provided, however, that this prohibition shall not 
apply to standard, directional, informational and identification signs of two square feet or less in size.  At the 
termination of this Lease, or sooner, all such signs, advertising matter, symbols, canopies or awnings, attached or 
painted by Tenant shall be removed from the Premises by Tenant at its own expense, and Tenant shall repair any 
damage or injury to the Premises, and correct any unsightly conditions caused by the maintenance or removal of said 
signs. 
 

16. HOLDING OVER 
 

If Tenant with the City’s written consent remains in possession of the Premises after the expiration or 
termination of the Lease term for any cause, or after the date in any notice given by the City to Tenant terminating 
this Lease, such holding over shall be deemed a tenancy from month to month at the same rental amount applicable 

 
  Page 6 of 9 17



ATTACHMENT A 
 

immediately prior to such expiration or termination, subject to adjustment in accordance with CMC § 5.22.040(c) or 
such successor provision of the code then in effect, and shall be terminable on 30 days’ written notice given at any 
time by either party.  All other provisions of this Lease except those pertaining to term and rent shall apply to the 
month-to-month tenancy.  If Tenant holds over without the City’s express written consent, Tenant is deemed to be a 
tenant at sufferance and may be removed through a forcible entry and detainer proceeding without service on Tenant 
of a notice to quit.   
 

17. EMINENT DOMAIN 
 
If the whole or any part of the Premises shall be taken for any public or quasi-public use, under any statute 

or by right of eminent domain or private purchase in lieu thereof by a public body vested with the power of eminent 
domain, then the following provisions shall be operative. 
 

A. Total Taking.  If the Premises are totally taken by condemnation, this Lease shall terminate. 
 

B. Partial Taking. If the Premises are partially taken by condemnation, then this Lease shall continue 
and the rent as specified in Section 3 above shall be abated in a proportion equal to the ratio that the portion of the 
Premises taken bears to the total Premises leased hereunder. 

 
C. Award.  Upon condemnation, the parties shall share in the award to the extent that their interests, 

respectively, are depreciated, damaged, or destroyed by the condemnation. 
 

18. COSTS 
 
Tenant shall be liable to and shall pay the City for the fees and costs incurred by the City in connection with 

the preparation, operation and enforcement of this Lease.   
 

19. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A. Time Is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Lease and of each provision hereof. 
 

B. Entire Agreement.  This Lease represents the entire agreement between the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof, and may not be amended except in writing executed by the City and Tenant. 
 

C. Governing Law and Venue.  This Lease shall be subject to the provisions of the Code now or 
hereafter in effect.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Alaska law and any action 
arising under this Lease shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Cordova, Alaska.   

 
D. Relationship of Parties.  Nothing in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to create the 

relationship of principal and agent, or of partnership, or of joint venture, or of any association between Tenant and the 
City.  Neither the method of computation of rent, nor any other provisions contained in this Lease, nor any acts of the 
parties shall be deemed to create any relationship between the City and Tenant other than the relationship of tenant 
and landlord. 
 

E. Notice.  All notices hereunder may be hand-delivered or mailed.  If mailed, they shall be sent by 
certified or registered mail to the following respective addresses: 

 
TO CITY:     TO TENANT: 

 
City of Cordova     Cordova Chamber of Commerce 
Attn: City Manager    Attn: Jennifer Gibbins 
P.O. Box 1210     P.O. Box 99 
Cordova, Alaska  99574     Cordova, Alaska 99574 

 
or to such other respective addresses as either party hereto may hereafter from time to time designate in advance in 
writing to the other party.  Notices sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given when properly mailed, and the 

 
  Page 7 of 9 18



ATTACHMENT A 
 

postmark affixed by the U.S. Post Office shall be conclusive evidence of the date of mailing. If hand-delivered, notice 
shall be deemed to have been made at the time of delivery. 

 
F. Captions.  Captions herein are for convenience and reference and shall not be used in construing 

the provisions of this Lease. 
 

G. No Waiver of Breach.  No failure by the City to insist upon the strict performance of any term, 
covenant or condition of this Lease, or to exercise any right or remedy upon a breach thereof, shall constitute a waiver 
of any such breach or of such term, covenant or condition.  No waiver of any breach shall effect or alter this Lease, 
but each and every term, covenant and condition of this Lease shall continue in full force and effect with respect to 
any other existing or subsequent breach. 
 

H. Survival.  No expiration or termination of this Lease shall expire or terminate any liability or 
obligation to perform which arose prior to the termination or expiration. 
 

I. Late Payment.  In the event that any rent or other payment due under this Lease is not received by 
the City when due, a late fee of five percent (5%) per month of the principal amount due shall be due and payable 
until the full amount of rent or other payment is received by the City. 
 

J. Partial Invalidity.  If any provision of this Lease is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no 
way be affected, impaired, or invalidated. 
 

K. Successors and Assigns.  The terms, covenants and conditions in this Lease shall inure to the benefit 
of and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the City and Tenant. 

 
L. Estoppel Certificates.  Either party shall at any time and from time to time, upon not less than 10 

days’ prior written request by the other party, execute, acknowledge, and deliver to such party a statement certifying 
that this Lease is unamended and in full force and effect (or, if there has been any amendment, that the same is in full 
force and effect as amended and stating the amendments); that there are no defaults existing (or, if there is any claimed 
default, stating the nature and extent thereof); and stating the dates to which the rent and other charges have been paid 
in advance. 
 

M. Recordation of Lease.  The parties agree that this Lease shall not be recorded, but upon the request 
of either party, the other party will join the requesting party in executing a memorandum of lease in a form suitable 
for recording, and each party agrees that such memorandum shall be prepared and recorded at the requesting party’s 
expense. 
 

N. Authority.  Tenant represents that Tenant has all necessary power and is duly authorized to enter 
into this Lease and to carry out the obligations of Tenant hereunder. 

 
O. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed to create any 

rights or benefits to any parties not signatories or successors or permitted assigns of signatories to this Lease. 
 
P. Interpretation.  The language in all parts of this Lease shall in all cases be simply construed 

according to its fair meaning and not for or against the City or Tenant as both City and Tenant have had the assistance 
of attorneys in drafting and reviewing this Lease. 
 

Q. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so executed and 
delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  

 
R. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event that the City shall bring any suit or action to enforce this Lease or 

any term or provision hereof, and shall prevail in such suit or action, Tenant agrees that Tenant shall pay the City’s 
attorney’s fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with such suit or action. 

 

 
  Page 8 of 9 19



ATTACHMENT A 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be executed on the dates set opposite their 
respective signatures below. 
 
 

CITY:     CITY OF CORDOVA 
 
 

Dated:      By:       
 
Its:  City Manager 

 
 
 

Attest: ______________________________ 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

TENANT:    CORDOVA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 
 
 

Dated:      By:       
       
 

Its:       

 
  Page 9 of 9 20



 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 

SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 @ 6:45 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

MINUTES 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor James Kacsh called the Council public hearing to order at 6:45 pm on September 03, 2014, in the 
Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kacsh and Council members Tim Joyce, Tom Bailer, Bret 

Bradford, Dave Reggiani and James Burton. Also present was City Clerk Susan Bourgeois.  
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Ordinance 1119 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing a sublease for a 2,500 
square foot portion of USS 1765 of Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Section 22, Copper River 
Meridian, Alaska, commonly identified as tripod hill, to Cordova Telephone Cooperative, Inc. 
 

2. Ordinance 1120 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, waiving for good cause the failure of 
Irene Hansen to make timely application for a senior citizen property tax exemption for the 2014 tax yea 

 
Mayor Kacsh opened the hearing up for public comment  
 

Paul Kelly Box 265 and CEO of Cordova Telephone Cooperative and Cordova Wireless 
Communications spoke regarding Ordinance 1119, he asked Council to allow further negotiations. 
 
Paul Swartzbart spoke regarding Ordinance 1119 and saw no problems with the lease and felt that a 
locally based telecom should not get any special deal regarding rent, he hoped Council would pass the 
ordinance. 
 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to recess for 5 minutes at 6:52 pm. With no objection, the public hearing was 
recessed. 
 
At 6:57 pm Mayor Kacsh called the public hearing back to order and asked if there was any further public 
comment on either ordinance. There was none. 
 

D.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/Joyce S/Bailer to adjourn the Public Hearing 
Hearing no objection, the Public Hearing was adjourned at 6:58 pm. 
 
Approved:  September 17, 2014 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
            Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

MINUTES – PUBLIC HEARING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 
PAGE 1 OF 1 21



 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 @ 7:00 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

MINUTES 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor James Kacsh called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:00 pm on September 03, 2014, in the 
Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor James Kacsh led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kacsh and Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, Tom 

Bailer, Bret Bradford, Dave Reggiani and James Burton. Also present was City Clerk Susan Bourgeois. 
 

D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
M/Reggiani S/Joyce to approve the Regular Agenda.  
Carpenter asked if an executive session regarding CCMC financials could be added as item 30. Council 
concurred to do so. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Bailer and Carpenter both declared conflicts of interest on item 20 because each might be interested in putting 
in proposals for that lot if it is made available. Mayor Kacsh agreed they are both then conflicted. 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speaker – John Andrew Leman, CTC Attorney spoke concerning item 4 and asked if Council could 
pull it from the consent calendar in hopes that more negotiations could occur. 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items 
Jim Holley Cordova resident of 18 years spoke against item 18, his concern was that funders would not award 
money if we bond it now. Also, he didn’t want the burden on the property tax payers now. 
Barclay Kopchak spoke against item 18; believes it is premature. This would stop donors in their tracks. She 
would prefer to wait to see the outcome of the windows issue and have the bond at the end when we know the 
exact amount needed.  
Jennifer Gibbens spoke against item 18 agreeing that it is premature. City Council has invested in this capital 
campaign as has the Committee; we’ve paid consultants and spent six months on a plan for the capital campaign 
and a bond at this time would kill it – both individual donors and the foundations. She also is excited about the 
economic development tax incentive which is contained in this packet – she is familiarizing herself with it at 
this point. 
Katrina Hoffman of 301 South Second Street, spoke against item 18 – agreed with other voices on this tonight, 
as a member of the Capital Campaign Committee – urged them to wait until a later date to see if this is 
necessary; hoped Council would approve item 7 in the consent agenda; in executive session Council will be 
considering land negotiation with PWSSC and she hoped they had received her letter on the topic 
David Allison of 203 Whiskey Ridge Road, spoke in favor of item 19 and against item 18. He hoped Council 
would pull item 4 and refer it to staff for continued negotiations with CTC. 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions - Harbor, HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board 

Burton said Harbor Commission will meet next week. 
Carpenter said that there is one Doctor hired who is just waiting for his license to be approved and the week 
of September 20 they will be interviewing 3 administrator candidates. Stephen Sundby and Tiffany Varnadoe 

from CCMC were present and Carpenter mentioned there are some problems concerning EHR at CCMC and 
this would be discussed in the executive session. 
 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 

PAGE 1 OF 6 
22



 
G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
Mayor Kacsh informed Council that the consent calendar was before them. 
Council pulled items 4 & 7 from the consent calendar. They were placed on the agenda after item 19. 
4. Ordinance 1119 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing a sublease 
for a 2,500 square foot portion of USS 1765 of Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Section 22, Copper River 
Meridian, Alaska, commonly identified as tripod hill, to Cordova Telephone Cooperative, Inc 
5. Ordinance 1120 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, waiving for good cause 
the failure of Irene Hansen to make timely application for a senior citizen property tax exemption for the 2014 
tax year 

6. Council decision on property disposal, Lot 3, Block 7A, Tidewater Development Park 
7. Resolution 07-14-28 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a five (5) year lease of the building locally known as the “Old Sea Grant Office” located 
on a portion of Lot 3, Block 7a, Tidewater Development Park with the Prince William Sound Science Center  
8. Resolution 08-14-32 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a collection services agreement with Merchants Credit Association, a licensed and 
bonded collection agency 
9. Resolution 08-14-33 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Appraisal Company of Alaska for tax year 2015 assessment services 
in the amount of sixteen thousand dollars ($16,000) 

 10. Record unexcused absence for Joyce and excused absences for Mayor Kacsh and Council members 

Cheshier and Burton from the August 06, 2014 Regular Meeting 

Vote on Consent Calendar: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Burton-yes; Joyce-yes; Bradford-yes; Carpenter-
yes; Reggiani-yes and Bailer-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/Bradford S/Bailer to approve the Minutes. 
11. Regular Meeting Minutes 08-06-14 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 
12. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Kacsh said he would like to reinstitute the monthly lunch meetings that Mayor 

Joyce used to have with the chairs of boards and commissions. He met with the Chamber of Commerce to 
discuss the MOU between them and the City and met last week with Laura Cloward and the City Manager 
regarding USDA and the US Forest Service. 
13. Manager’s Report – Stavig said in Robertson’s absence he had nothing specific to report to Council. 
Reggiani asked if he could have an update on the SRTS (safe routes to school) project. Stavig deferred to 
Rogers who said that the bids are due this coming Friday at 2 pm, there has already been one amendment – 
that the construction will be next summer as we are too late into the fall season at this time. 

a. Cordova Center update report 
Bailer asked Rogers where we were on hiring a project manager. Rogers said candidate one had declined the 
offer we are interviewing another candidate on Friday morning. Bailer asked if we are still advertising that as 
the facilities manager job as well. Rogers said yes, the title is Superintendent of Facilities – one of which is the 
Cordova Center. The first year of that person’s work will be the project itself.  
14. City Clerk’s Report - Bourgeois said she had a few items prepared later in the agenda and she could answer 
questions on those at that time. 
 a. Report on state-allowed “residential property” optional exemption 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
15. Letter from Kay Groff regarding “Cordova Conversation” 08-05-14 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 

PAGE 2 OF 6 
23



 
16. Council member EJ Cheshier letter resigning form Council Seat E 
City Clerk Bourgeois mentioned that City Charter was not very descriptive on the procedures to be used for 
filling the vacancy so she was turning to Council for advice/direction as to what approach they favored. 
Consensus was to have Bourgeois advertise for letters of interest ASAP and have an agenda item on the 
regular meeting of September 17. 
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  
17. Resolution 09-14-34 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, designating capital 
improvement projects 
M/Bailer S/Reggiani to approve Resolution 09-14-34 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, designating capital improvement projects. 
After lengthy discussion, among themselves and with the assistance of Legislative Lobbyist John Bitney who 
was present via teleconference, Council was prepared to restate and reorder the priorities. 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to amend the resolution by restating and reordering the list as follows: 1. Cordova 
Center, 2. G Float Replacement, 3. CCMC Technological Improvements, 4. Public Safety Building, 5. 
General Harbor Improvements, 6. Shipyard Fill & Shipyard Building, 7. South Fill Sidewalks, 8. Sawmill 
Avenue Extension, 9. Recreation Building, 10. Ferry Trail. 
Vote on motion to amend: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
Vote on main motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
18. Resolution 09-14-35 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City 
of Cordova to issue general obligation debt in the principal amount of not to exceed $5,000,000 to finance the 
completion of the Cordova Center, and to submit the question of the issuance of such debt to the qualified 
voters of the City at the November 4, 2014 Special City Election 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to approve Resolution 09-14-35 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, authorizing the City of Cordova to issue general obligation debt in the principal amount of not to 
exceed $5,000,000 to finance the completion of the Cordova Center, and to submit the question of the issuance 
of such debt to the qualified voters of the City at the November 4, 2014 Special City Election. 
Joyce said he will speak against this – there was a lot of public comment against it as well. He thinks it is 
premature in November. He said we now have Cordova Center as our number one priority and the legislature 
won’t fund us if we bond for it. We are also jeopardizing foundation funding. Joyce said it would be more 
realistic to look at this for spring. Reggiani said he put this resolution on the table and considered spring vs. 
fall and felt fall made the most sense. He does agree this will take some educating of the public on this item 
but the goal is to finance the completion. His opinion is the most sense would be to amortize the financing 
over 30 years – becomes much more affordable to the community. Reggiani surmised that based on figures 
the Manager had supplied previously, that the payment would be in the $250K per year range. Joyce said that 
he appreciates Reggiani’s thought process but that the City isn’t broke. If we need to use reserves or our line 
of credit we could do so and then be reimbursed by a bond that was approved at a March election. Joyce 
reiterated that we just put the Cordova Center as our number one priority and we would be losing opportunity 
at that if we bonded now.  Also he said it would be hard to educate the public on a $5M bond amount when 
that is not a firm number. Burton said he agrees with Joyce and won’t support this now. Bailer said he agrees 
with Reggiani and with Joyce. He doesn’t want to second guess the fundraisers, they are the professionals at 
that. The financing part of this and the fact that we don’t have a professional project manager bothers Bailer. 
Bradford said he is listening to the debate and he can’t support it now. Mayor Kacsh thought a good idea 
might be to refer this to staff versus voting it down – in an effort to not negate any show of support. Joyce 
said there isn’t anyone who is against the idea of bonding, but more so is against the timing of this. 
M/Joyce S/Bradford to refer to staff until the first meeting in January when it will come back for further 
review.  
Vote on motion: 4 yeas, 1 nay (Reggiani), 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 

PAGE 3 OF 6 
24



 
19. Resolution 09-14-36 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City 
of Cordova to issue general obligation bonds in the principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000 to finance 
the city street improvements and to submit the question of the issuance of such debt to the qualified voters of 
the City at the November 4, 2014 Special City Election 
M/Reggiani S/Joyce to approve Resolution 09-14-36 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, authorizing the City of Cordova to issue general obligation bonds in the principal amount of not to 
exceed $2,000,000 to finance the city street improvements and to submit the question of the issuance of such 
debt to the qualified voters of the City at the November 4, 2014 Special City Election. 
Reggiani said that DoT will be paving Whitshed next summer and for timing this is timely to piggyback with 
them to save on mobilization of such a paving effort. Bailer said he supports this. Joyce said that the City 
hasn’t paved a street since he’s been here; he is also supporting this. Jon Stavig said that this resolution might 
need to come back or a different one correcting this, as far as what the attorney has advised. He has briefly 
spoken to the bond bank and we are looking at a six month time-frame for getting any funds from the bond 
bank, once the process is begun. Burton said this time he completely agrees with Reggiani.  
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
19a. (4.) Ordinance 1119 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing a 
sublease for a 2,500 square foot portion of USS 1765 of Township 15 South, Range 3 West, Section 22, 
Copper River Meridian, Alaska, commonly identified as tripod hill, to Cordova Telephone Cooperative, Inc. 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to approve Ordinance 1119 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, authorizing a sublease for a 2,500 square foot portion of USS 1765 of Township 15 South, Range 3 
West, Section 22, Copper River Meridian, Alaska, commonly identified as tripod hill, to Cordova Telephone 
Cooperative, Inc. 
Joyce said that from the public testimony, he said maybe there is a chance to improve the lease to help with 
some of the sticking points. He went on to say that he does not believe that the amount of rent is something 
he thinks should be conceded. 
M/Joyce S/Bradford to refer to staff for additional negotiations not including any concessions on rent amount. 
Bailer said he is comfortable with how it has been presented and enough time has been put into this already. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 1 nay (Bailer), 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
19 b. (7.) Resolution 07-14-28 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing 
the City Manager to enter into a five (5) year lease of the building locally known as the “Old Sea Grant Office” 
located on a portion of Lot 3, Block 7a, Tidewater Development Park with the Prince William Sound Science 
Center  
M/Bradford S/Bailer to approve Resolution 07-14-28 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to enter into a five (5) year lease of the building locally known as the 
“Old Sea Grant Office” located on a portion of Lot 3, Block 7a, Tidewater Development Park with the Prince 
William Sound Science Center. 
Bradford said it looks good to me. Bailer said he is not objecting to the lease. He said that the lease calls for 
the lessee to be responsible for the maintenance on the building and there has been none done. He’d like to see 
the building repaired now and then the benchmark can be set.  
M/Bailer S/Bradford to refer to staff. 
Reggiani said he’d like staff to go back and look at the original benchmarks that may have been established in 
the original lease. 
Burton temporarily lost a phone connection. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nay, 1 absent (Burton), 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
M/Bradford S/Bailer for a 5 minute recess. Hearing no objection the meeting was recessed from 9:04 pm until 
9:09 pm. 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
20. Council decision on property disposal Lot 2 Block 7 North Fill Development Park 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 

PAGE 4 OF 6 
25



 
M/Joyce S/Reggiani to dispose of Lot 2, Block 7 North Fill DP by requesting sealed proposals to lease or 
purchase the property. 
Vote on motion: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E), 2 conflicted (Bailer, Carpenter). Motion passes. 
21. Council confirmation of Mayor’s nomination to the Parks and Rec Commission 
M/Carpenter S/Joyce to confirm Mayor Kacsh’s nomination of Dave Zastrow to the Parks and Rec 
Commission. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
22. Discussion of City owned/operated Used Oil Burners 
Bradford would like some info on getting a waste oil burner for the pool and/or Bidarki – he appreciates the 
time and staff time Randy put into this report. Bailer said that the City Shop guys have been over to Wilson’s 
burner and are trying to improve on it, he appreciates their work on this. Carpenter said she thinks maybe the 
pool would be a good stand-alone facility to investigate the use of a pellet stove – i.e. create pellets out of 
recycled cardboard. Mayor Kacsh thought it would be a good idea to add an anti-freeze collection spot for 
harbor users; he hoped this could be discussed at budget. Reggiani said he’d like to see this tagged as part of 
our recycle program. Joyce agreed that this would be a good item for our newsletter. 
23. Discussion of residential property tax exemption 
Mayor Kacsh asked for this item so that this could be discussed as the other side of the equation when raw 
fish tax was being discussed – it is in no way an equivalent offset, but it would help. The guesstimate that the 
Clerk came up with was a $300K deficit this would be to property tax revenue annually.  
24. Discussion of economic development property tax exemption 
Mayor Kacsh brought this up because in the five years it has been in Code, it has never been applied for or 
granted. He said maybe it is too restrictive. Joyce said at the time there were existing businesses that felt it 
would be too much of an advantage for the newly forming businesses and the existing businesses could not 
take advantage of such a tax break. 
25. Pending Agenda, Calendar, Elected & Appointed Officials lists 
Direction was clarified that ordinance 1119 would not be back until Oct 1 because they were directing the 
City Manager to handle that further negotiation. Otherwise next Council meeting is September 17. Mayor 

Kacsh mentioned that in October we’ll start thinking about budget work sessions. Council requested 
background info for the next packet regarding the City Facilities Committee work from a few year back as 
they begin to contemplate what will happen to Library/Museum building once Cordova Center is completed. 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
David Allison 203 Whiskey Ridge Rd mentioned HB 278 which was passed through the legislature this last 
session and there are tax credits available to businesses for donating money to public schools. He has the school 
district looking at this and wants to ensure someone from the City takes it on as well; could be a great tax 
savings to a company as well as to the City and a benefit to the schools; a win-win-win.  
Rich Rogers mentioned that a potential change order may be coming from the contractor. If so, he may have 
to ask for a special meeting – while you were just discussing calendar, he just wanted to make them aware. 
Donald Kurz, 1001 Lake Avenue, said that CHS had some home sports that he was able to broadcast – 20 
some hours of live volleyball, pretty exciting. He thanked Bret Bradford for donating his time to put in some 
coax cables so he could get different angle shots, etc. Thanked the Clerk for including them, ASLN, in noticing, 
etc. for City Council activities. 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
26. Council Comments 
Bailer said that he had a friend mention that they had donated funds to the Cordova Center and that person was 
surprised to see that at Salmon Jam there was a poster naming sponsors, one of which was the Cordova Center 
(he thought that was funny – maybe a sponsorship in name only). He said we will miss EJ Cheshier, but he 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 

PAGE 5 OF 6 
26



 
thinks EJ will be back. Bailer spoke about Jim Kallander and what a great man this community has lost, 
school board, council, mayor – he will be sorely missed.  
Reggiani said ditto on EJ and Jim Kallander. 
Bradford said a friend of his brings a group of Purple Hearts into Cordova each fall for a hunt and he was 
amazed at how the group this year had such kudos for our community this time here. They spoke to the 
hospitality and patriotism seen and felt in Cordova. Bradford said it made him proud. Bradford said people 
were always thanking them for their service and struck up conversations, etc. with these men. 
Carpenter also echoed Bailer’s comments on EJ and Jim Kallander. 
Joyce said he also thanked Cheshier for his service and said he has put in a lot of time on Council and on HSB 
before that was required of Council – he sat on there for a long time as well; he said Cheshier would be missed. 
He thanked ASLN for putting Council on TV. He reminded Council that 2 weeks ago Council did not have a 
quorum and a meeting was canceled. He said that Council is supposed to notify the Clerk if they won’t be 
making a meeting so she can ascertain whether or not there will be a quorum. Joyce said that is not happening. 
He said that it was embarrassing for the City that we didn’t have that meeting and it really put some people out 
who had items on that agenda, etc.   
 

M/Bradford S/Bailer to recess the meeting before the executive session. With no objection the meeting was 
recessed from 9:54 pm until 9:59 pm. 
 

Q.  EXECUTIVE SESSION  
27. Performance Deed of Trust negotiation 
28. Attorney update regarding PWSSC land disposal negotiation 
29. Attorney update on Cordova Center  
30. CCMC Financials 
M/Joyce S/Bradford to go into executive session to discuss matters the immediate knowledge of which would 
clearly have an adverse effect on the finances of the government specifically: Hospital Finances, Performance 
Deed of Trust negotiation, Attorney update regarding PWSSC land disposal negotiation and Attorney update 
on Cordova Center. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
Council entered the executive session at 10:01 pm and reconvened the regular meeting at 10:46 pm. 
M/Joyce S/Bradford to direct the City Manager to proceed as was discussed in the executive session regarding 
items 27, 28 & 30. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent (Bailer), 1 vacancy (seat E). Motion passes. 
 

R.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/Joyce S/Bradford to adjourn. Hearing no objections the meeting was adjourned at 10:47 pm. 
 
 
Approved: September 17, 2014 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 03, 2014 

PAGE 6 OF 6 
27



 
Cordova Center Progress Update 

Memo 
To:  Mayor and City Council 

CC:  Randy Robertson 

From:  Rich Rogers, Cathy Sherman 

Date:     September 10, 2014 

Re:     Cordova Center Phase II Update – 17Sep Council Meeting 
 

SCHEDULE 

• Capita l Campaig n ‘ Quie t’  Phase  July 17-Se pte mbe r 19 

• Capita l Campaig n ‘ Public ’  Kic ko ff  Friday Se pt 19th 5-7pm in the  Co rdo va  Ce nte r 

CONSTRUCTION 

• DCI -  Supt/ PM/ subs o nsite  10-19Se p; slab  map; the rmal imag ing ; po we r wash; he at 

• DCI –  7 initia l me c hanic al submitta ls are  in/ unde r re vie w (ve ntila to r, humid ifie r, e tc ) 

• DCI –  re c e nt sc he dule  sho ws 3 we e k slippag e ; unac c e ptable ; no  no tific a tio n 

• DCI – will so o n submit the ir 100% c o sts pe r 100% plans & Phase  I De fic ie nc y List 

• MRV – o nsite  12-13Se p  

• MRV-w/ Trinity; Casc ad ia  3 pane  fibe rg lass windo w; 70 psf is c halle nge  @12’ x7’  windo w 

• City – CO# 01 appro ve d $23K – Ene rg y Saving  lo w te mpe rature  c o ils in AHU; 7 she e ts 

BUDGET 

• Estimated balanc e  as o f 09-10-2014        $56,166.75 

• The  ba lanc e s o f the  ava ilable  g rants are : 

• EVOSTC   $2,375,936.52 

• DCCED Le g is Grant  $   994,478.00 

• DCCED Le g is Grant  $4,000,000.00 

• Of the  $750,000 lo c al & c o rpo rate  g o al, appro x $18,000 has be e n ra ise d / ple dg e d 

 

CAPITAL CAMPAIGN ‘Get ‘Er Done’ 

• Co rdo va  Ce nte r Co mmitte e  is mo nito ring  the  re sults o f the ir e ffo rts and plan to  anno unc e  

info rmatio n abo ut the  Capita l Campaig n at the  unve iling  o f the  public  po rtio n o f fundra ising  o n 

Friday, September 19th from 5-7 in the  Cordova Center for a c ommunity event.  

• As a  part o f the  Capita l Campaig n the  Co mmitte e  is be g inning  wo rk o n the  sto rybo ard  fo r a  

brie f 90 sec ond to 2 minute  doc umentary o n the  pro je c t as a  to o l fo r po te ntial funde rs.  

• The  Co mmitte e  de c ide d  to  mo ve  fo rward  with an invitation to the  Museums Alaska and Alaska 

Historic al Soc iety Boards for a Fall 2015 Conferenc e .  

• Quiet Campaign invo lve s asking  le ad  do no rs to  inve st in the  Campaig n; inc lude s asking  Bo ard  

me mbe rs o f Co rdo va  Ce nte r partne rs to  make  a  g ift to  the  Campaig n.  This is in pre paratio n fo r 

re que sts to  Rasmuso n Fo undatio n and  o the rs who  require  100%  Board giving.  The  fo llo wing  

tab le  summarize s the  re sults to  date : 

 

 

1 
28



2014 Cordova Center Capital Campaign 

Bo ard / Co mmitte e  #  

Me mbe rs 

Co rdo va  Ce nte r 

Do no rs 

Do no r % o f 

Me mbe rship 

Co rdo va  Ce nte r Cmte  9 1 11 

Co rdo va  City Co unc il 8 0 0 

Co rdo va  Chambe r o f Co mme rc e  Bo ard 11 1 9 

Co rdo va  Arts & Pag e ants Bo ard 9 3 33 

Co rdo va  Histo ric al So c ie ty Truste e s 7 2 29 

Co rdo va  Public  Library Bo ard 5 2 40 

Frie nds o f the  Co rdo va  Public  Library 6 2 33 

PWS Sc ie nc e  Ce nte r Bo ard 12 3 25 

Totals 67 14 21 

 

 
---- End of Memo---- 

 Page 2 

 
29



This CO#01 Energy Saving Low Temperature Coils revision to the AHU Air Handling Unit will retain our 

heating system’s flexibility for future adaptation to add either one or more GSHP Ground Source Heat 

Pumps, an air source heat pump, a seawater source heat pump, or an electric boiler.  This change has 

been worked by the team for the last 4 weeks (pursuant to Council’s exhortation to review the project’s 

energy performance) and is strongly recommended by the City’s Design Team, including MRV, Murray 

Mechanical  Engrs, and Energy Analyst Jim Rehfeldt. 

 

Dawson’s cost for the change is $23,181 and includes $18,500 for mechanical, $2500 electrical, and 

$2181 for misc/contingency.   

 

This change impacts an early DCI submittal for AHU that we need to return to them very quickly to avoid 

project delay. 

 

Key comments from Design Team are provided below. 

 

********************************************** 

Input from the Design Team: 

 

Mech Engr Doug Murray, 08Sep14: 

   

I think this is a smart investment whether or not the heat pump system (air, ground, or seawater) goes 

in now or 10 years from now.  At least the ‘hard’ part (infrastructure) will be done within the 

building.   Other interior heat pump system components will be needed in the future to complete the 

interior changeover such as thermal storage tank, heat pumps, related piping, and controls additions but 

all of those components will be contained within or around the Mechanical Room and are not needed 

for the heating system currently.   

Doug Murray describes the mechanical changes, 04Sep14:   

1.       The changes are shown on the submitted drawings with a triangle with a 2 note.  Plan 
changes were generally bubbled, schedules were not bubbled but were noted.   

2.       The AHU and TMB heating coils were changed to low temperature heating water.  These 
coils will need to be resized by the manufacturer’s representatives.  See schedules. 

3.       A new pump P-10 was added to serve the Hot Water Tank heat exchanger, automatic valve 
48 was eliminated.   There is an electrical component to this change (manual starter).  Heating 
was changed to directly feed off of the boilers loop.  Control points added. 

4.       The two CV-1 convectors will need to be resized for low temperature heat.   

5.       The two CV-2 convectors were eliminated.  CUH-1 Cabinet Unit Heaters were added in 
their place.  There is an electrical component to this change (connection to the two CUH’s, 
manual starters).  Control points added, no diagram was added to controls drawing M803 but 
sequence was added (see spec page).  

6.       Pumps P-4A & B gpm changed slightly (same pump, different impeller). 

30



7.       Flowsetter and automatic valve flow rates changed.   

8.       Note; the heating piping sizes were NOT changed, the existing sizes worked for the slight 
flow increase.   

Jim Rehfeldt, 02Sep14: 

 

I have put together a quick energy analysis of the electric boiler and air source heat pump options.  

 

Electric Boiler Energy Analysis 

 

Assumption:  Per Clay Koplin’s projection of future surplus power availability: 

 

• Interruptible power is available 15.5 weeks per year or 30% of the year. At that availability, it 

will supply 28% of the heating load. 

• An energy analysis determined that the electric boiler offers a life cycle energy savings (over 25 

years) of $213,000. 

• The installation costs will likely be less than $213,000, but the total cost is not known until we 

find out the service requirements. 

 

Based on the above, there is a high likelihood that an electric boiler will provide a life cycle savings. 

 

Air Source Heat Pump Energy Analysis 

 

Assumption:  Air source heat pump sized for 50% of the peak heating load; supplies 90% of the annual 

heating load: 

 

• An energy analysis determined that the air source heat pump offers a life cycle energy savings 

(over 30 years) of $235,000. 

• The installation cost will likely be less than $235,000, but the total cost will depend upon if the 

electric service is large enough for the load. 

 

Based on the above, there is also a high likelihood that an air source heat pump will provide a life cycle 

savings. 

 

Summary 

 

Both options are likely to be a good investment for the City. A full analysis will firm up the economic 

comparison. However, the following can be summarized from the energy analysis: 

 

• Electric Boiler:  A reliable heating system that offers nearly the same life cycle energy savings as 

the heat pump. But it converts only 28% of the fuel oil heat to renewable hydropower. The 

system is not without risk as the analysis is highly sensitive to the actual availability of surplus 

power over the next 30 years. 

• Air Source Heat Pump: An upcoming technology new to Cordova. Offers a 90% conversion from 

fuel oil to renewable electricity. City will be required to accept an higher level of ownership and 

the risk associated with a new technology. 

31



Paul Voelckers responds to R Rogers questions, 31Aug14:   

1.        You wrote that if we make these changes then future flexibility is retained, ie, to stay with 3 
oil fired burners or perhaps change one or more to ground-source or air-source heat 
pump/exchanger.  If we make these changes, will we be forced into future changes or will they 
be optional? 

NO, JUST RETAINS OPTION.  OIL-FIRED WORKS JUST FINE. 

2.        This design review just done by Murray etc……please tell me again why it was not done 
one or 2 years ago….we came back to life last month after being dormant for 1.5 years, so 
something prompted the “review of heat transfer options”. 

THIS SUGGESTION FOLLOWED JIM REHFELDT'S BRIEF AUGUST ANALYSIS WHICH 
SHOWED THAT A GROUND SOURCE SYSTEM WAS FAR CLOSER TO COST-
EFFECTIVE THAN 2-3 YEARS EARLIER.  AIR-TO-AIR SYSTEMS, NOT YET STUDIED, 
WERE POTENTIALLY BETTER YET.  THIS SUGGESTED THAT STEPS RIGHT NOW TO 
ALLOW THAT CAPABILITY WERE PRUDENT. 

Paul Voelckers, 19Aug14:   

 

Murray and Associates is finishing up work to identify changes to incorporate low-temperature heating 
coils in the Cordova Center mechanical system. Dawson will use this information to identify a price 
change, should the City switch to lower-temperature coils. This memo explains why that change is 
potentially attractive.  
 
Currently, the building is designed with three oil-fired boilers which work in tandem to produce hot water 
for heating the building. Hot water is used in three areas, the first being in-slab radiant heat for the 
majority of occupied space. The second is to heat the air supplied by several air handlers in the building, 
with the heating accomplished using hot water coils in the air stream. The third is domestic hot water for 
use in lavs and showers.  
 
There is a potential that Cordova Center may be able to use ground-source or air-source heat pumps in 
lieu of oil boilers to supply some of the building heating load. To do so, the water system that transfers 
the heat (to either slabs or air-handlers, above) needs to operate at a lower temperature, roughly 120 
degrees F versus 180 degrees F.  
 
This requires the use of somewhat larger coils and supply piping to the air handlers. If that switch is made 
now, while the air handlers are being purchased, future flexibility for heating choices can be maintained.  
 
Related, the design team recommends that a study on the economic advantage of an air-to-air heat 
exchanger should be undertaken, with the possibility of replacing one or two of the oil boilers. This study 
would be performed by Jim Rehfeldt who is returning from vacation shortly. Jim will provide a cost 
proposal and timeline for this analysis for City review.  

 

32



Table of contents for 2009 City Buildings Committee Information: 

 

Resolution 08-08-35 from Aug 20, 2008 forming the committee...…………………………………………………. 1 of 22 

Buildings Committee Meeting Minutes 01-12-09……………………………………………………………………………. 2 of 22 

Buildings Committee Meeting Minutes 01-19-09……………………………………………………………………………. 5 of 22 

Buildings Committee Public Hearing Minutes 02-09-09…………………………………………………………………. 8 of 22 

Buildings Committee Meeting Minutes 02-09-09…………………………………………………………….……………. 10 of 22 

Buildings Committee Public Hearing Minutes 02-23-09…………………………………………………..……………. 14 of 22 

Buildings Committee Meeting Minutes 02-23-09…………………………………………………………….……………. 16 of 22 

Buildings Committee Recommendation to City Council 03-12-14……………………………………………..….. 20 of 21 

Excerpt from City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 03-18-09…………………….………………………………… 22 of 22 

 

 

33



Page 1 of 22

34



Page 2 of 22

35



Page 3 of 22

36



Page 4 of 22

37



Page 5 of 22

38



Page 6 of 22

39



Page 7 of 22

40



Page 8 of 22

41



Page 9 of 22

42



Page 10 of 22

43



Page 11 of 22

44



Page 12 of 22

45



Page 13 of 22

46



Page 14 of 22

47



Page 15 of 22

48



Page 16 of 22

49



Page 17 of 22

50



Page 18 of 22

51



Page 19 of 22

52



Page 20 of 22

53



Page 21 of 22

54



Page 22 of 22

55



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:   September 10, 2014   
  
TO:       Mayor & City Council 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolutions 09-14-37 & 09-14-38  
 

 
Council approved Resolution 09-14-36 at the September 3, 2014 meeting. Staff advised that the 
wording of the resolution had not been seen or worked on by the City Attorney and therefore, 
resolutions remedying the language of that resolution might be forthcoming. Tonight, there are 
two resolutions which do exactly that. City Attorney Holly Wells drafted these and can be 
available to answer questions if necessary regarding these special election and bond resolutions. 
Resolution 09-14-37 calls the Special Election to be held on November 4, 2014 and then 
Resolution 09-14-38 authorizes the issuance of GO bonds and submits the question of such 
issuance to the voters at the November 4, 2014 Special election. 
 
Recommended motion: move to approve Resolution 09-14-37 a resolution of the City Council 
of the City of Cordova, Alaska, calling a special election to be held in the city on November 4, 
2014, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of the city a proposition for the 
issuance of general obligation indebtedness to finance improvements to City of Cordova streets, 
and other matters to be determined by council 
 
Required Action: Majority voice vote.  
 
 
Recommended motion: move to approve Resolution 09-14-38 a resolution of the City Council 
of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City of Cordova to issue general obligation 
bonds in the principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000 to finance improvements to City of 
Cordova streets and to submit the question of the issuance of such debt to the qualified voters 
of the city at a November 4, 2014 special city election; and declaring the intent of the City of 
Cordova to reimburse original expenditures for city street improvements started after the date 
of this resolution but prior to the issuance of the general obligation bonds 
 
Required Action: Majority voice vote.  
 

56



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 09-14-37 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
CALLING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THE CITY ON NOVEMBER 4, 

2014, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE 
CITY A PROPOSITION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 
INDEBTEDNESS TO FINANCE IMPROVEMENTS TO CITY OF CORDOVA 

STREETS, AND OTHER MATTERS TO BE DETERMINED BY COUNCIL 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cordova (the “City”) has determined that it is necessary to 

construct improvements to City streets quickly and in coordination with the State of Alaska 
Department of Transportation; and  
 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of City Charter Section 6-1, the City may incur general 
obligation debt only when authorized by the Council and ratified by a majority of the voters of the 
City voting on the question; and  
 

WHEREAS, the schedule for construction of street improvements may require that 
funding for the Project be authorized before the next regular City election in March 2015; and  
 

WHEREAS, City Charter Section 10-9 provides that the council by resolution shall call a 
special election, and submit questions to the voters at the special election when it is called or later; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City and its residents that a proposition to issue 
general obligation indebtedness be presented to the qualified voters of the City at a special election 
on November 4, 2014, to provide timely authorization of general obligation indebtedness for the 
Project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT 
 

Section 1. A special election in and for the City is called for November 4, 2014, at 
which there shall be submitted to the qualified voters of the City (i) a proposition for the issuance 
of general obligation indebtedness of the City to finance improvements to City streets and (ii) other 
matters, if any, to be determined by the Council.  
 

Section 2. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to prepare for and conduct the 
special election in accordance with the City Charter and Code.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor  
 
       ATTEST: 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk  

57



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 09-14-38 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF CORDOVA TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS IN 
THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $2,000,000 TO FINANCE IMPROVEMENTS 
TO CITY OF CORDOVA STREETS AND TO SUBMIT THE QUESTION OF THE ISSUANCE OF 
SUCH DEBT TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY AT A NOVEMBER 4, 2014 SPECIAL 

CITY ELECTION; AND DECLARING THE INTENT OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA TO 
REIMBURSE ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES FOR CITY STREET IMPROVEMENTS STARTED 

AFTER THE DATE OF THIS RESOLUTION BUT PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cordova, Alaska (“City”) Council passed Resolution 09-14-36, which 
authorized the City to issue general obligation bonds in the principal amount not to exceed Two Million 
Dollars but did not provide for reimbursement of expenditures occurring prior to the issuance of the bonds; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to provide for potential reimbursement of expenditures 
occurring before the issuance of bonds given the need to construct improvements to City streets quickly and 
in coordination with the State of Alaska Department of Transportation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City is a home rule city and under Section 11 of Article X of the Alaska Constitution 
may exercise all legislative power not prohibited by law or charter of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6-1 of the Cordova City Charter authorizes the City to issue general obligation 
bonds or other such evidences of indebtedness, but only when authorized by the council for capital 
improvements and ratified by a majority of the qualified voters of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cordova Planning and Zoning Commission authorized Resolution 13-10 
recommending a capital improvement list to the City Council which included One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) for Street Repair and Improvements/Paving as one of the Commission’s top priorities; and  
 

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska Department of Transportation’s Whitshed Road Improvement 
Project is scheduled to be completed during the 2015 construction season providing an opportunity for the 
City to coordinate street improvements with the state; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City views the capital project authorized herein as necessary and beneficial to the 

community; and  
 

WHEREAS, §1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations requires that the City timely declare its intent 
to reimburse original expenditures for costs of capital improvements with proceeds of tax exempt bonds so 
that the reimbursement will qualify as an expenditure of proceeds of the bonds.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

Section 1.  It is hereby determined to be for a public purpose and in the public interest of the City to 
incur general obligation bonded indebtedness in the amount not to exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
for the purpose of paying the cost of completing improvements to City streets.  

58



 

 

Section 2.  The City is authorized to borrow the sum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) to finance 
the capital project described in Section 1, and the borrowing shall be evidenced by the issuance of general 
obligation bonds of the City.  The full faith and credit of the City are pledged for payment of the principal of 
and interest on the bonds, and ad valorem taxes upon all taxable property in the City shall be levied without 
limitation as to rate or amount to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds when due. 

 

Section 3. This resolution is intended to preempt Resolution 09-14-36 and, in the event that 
Resolution 09-14-36 is inconsistent or conflicts with this resolution, this resolution applies. 
 

Section 4. The City shall submit the following proposition to the qualified voters of the City at the 
November 4, 2014 Special City Election if such an election is held.  The proposition must receive an 
affirmative vote from a majority of the qualified voters voting on the question to be approved. 

 
PROPOSITION NO. 1 

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO CORDOVA CITY 
STREETS 

 

Shall the City of Cordova incur general obligation indebtedness in an amount not to exceed Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000) for the purpose of paying the cost of improvements to City streets? 
 

 Section 5.  The proposition, both for paper ballots and machine ballots, shall be printed on a ballot which 
may set forth other bond propositions, and the following words shall be added as appropriate and next to a 
space provided for marking the ballot for voting by hand or machine: 
 

PROPOSITION NO. 1 
 

YES  
NO 

 

 Section 6.  Sections 1 and 2 of this Resolution shall become effective only if the proposition described in 
Section 4 is approved by a majority of the qualified voters voting on the proposition at the November 4, 2014 
Special City election.  The remaining sections of this Resolution shall become effective upon passage and 
approval. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor  
 
       ATTEST: 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk  

59



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TO :        Ma yo r, City Co unc il 

FRO M:   Ra nd y Ro b e rtso n, City Ma na g e r 

Re :         Da wso n Co nstruc tio n Co rd o va  Ce nte r Pha se  II Lim ite d  No tic e  to          

 p ro c e e d  Co ntra c t Am e ndme nt, Sta g e  2 

 

CMC 5.12.040 “Counc il approval o f c ontrac ts” say s: 

No  c o ntrac t fo r supplie s, se rvic e s o r c o nstruc tio n whic h o b lig ate s the  c ity to  pay mo re  than 

fifte e n tho usand do llars may b e  e xe c ute d unle ss the  c o unc il has appro ve d a  

me mo randum se tting  fo rth the  fo llo wing  e sse ntial te rms o f the  c o ntrac t: 

A.  The  ide ntity o f the  c o ntrac to r; 

B. The  c o ntrac t pric e ; 

C .  The  nature  and q uantity o f the  pe rfo rmanc e  that the  c ity sha ll re c e ive  unde r the  

 c o ntrac t; and 

D.  The  time  fo r pe rfo rmanc e  unde r the  c o ntrac t. 

 

I re c o mme nd  the  City ame nd  the  c urre nt c o ntra c t with Da wso n Co nstruc tio n, o f 

Be lling ham , Wa shing to n to  a utho rize  a  Limite d  No tic e  to  pro c e e d  fo r c o nstruc tio n o f the  

Co rd o va  Ce nte r, Pha se  II, Sta g e  2. 

 

The  c o ntra c t pric e  is no t to  e xc e e d  a  sum o f Fo ur Millio n Five  Hund re d  Se ve nty-Eig ht 

Tho usa nd , Se ve n Hund re d , Fifty Two  Do lla rs. ($4,578,752).  Se e  a tta c he d  Fisc a l No te . 

 

A summ a ry o f the  na ture  a nd  q ua ntity o f the  pe rfo rm a nc e  the  c ity sha ll re c e ive  inc lud e s 

me c ha nic a l a nd  e le c tric a l sub c o ntra c ts.  (Se e  a tta c he d  me mo  fro m Da wso n). 

 

Re c omme nde d a c tion: Vo ic e  Vo te .  

I mo ve  to  a ppro ve  Re so lutio n 09-14-40. 

 

Ra nd y Ro b e rtso n 

City Ma na g e r 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CITY OF CORDOVA 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 

P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 

Web: www.cityofcordova.net 
 

60

mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 09-14-40 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

APPROVING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH DAWSON CONSTRUCTION FOR 
A LIMITED NOTICE TO PROCEED FOR PHASE 2, STAGE 2 OF THE CORDOVA 

CENTER PROJECT FOR A SUM OF $4,578,752 
 

WHEREAS, Dawson Construction is under contract with the City of Cordova for Phase 2 
of the Cordova Center Project; and  

  
WHEREAS, Dawson Construction has identified a scope of work for a Limited Notice to 

Proceed (Stage #2) with a scope of work that includes Interior Framing, Mechanical Rough-In and 
Electrical Rough-In (Ready for Drywall and other finishes); and 

  
WHEREAS, funds have been identified for the costs of this Limited Notice to Proceed 

(Stage #2) from the Cordova Center Project Budget in the line item ‘Construction’. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of 

Cordova, Alaska, hereby approves a contract amendment with Dawson Construction for a Limited 
Notice to Proceed (Stage #2) for Phase 2 of the Cordova Center Project for a sum of Four Million, 
Five Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand, Seven Hundred, Fifty-Two Dollars ($4,578,752); and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all remaining work within the Cordova Center 

Project Phase II will be brought forward to City Council for approval of appropriation before 
proceeding.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014 
 

        
       ____________________________________ 
       James Kacsh, Mayor 
 
      ATTEST:   
        

____________________________________
  Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

61



City of Cordova 
Fiscal Note 

 
 
Date: September 17, 2014     Agenda Date: September 17, 2014 

Amount:  $4,578,752 Subject:    Cordova Center Limited Notice to Proceed  
                 Phase 2, Stage 2 Fiscal Impact:  Yes     

Budgeted:   Yes   Resolution 09-14-40 

From Account#:     Cordova Center Fund Balance 

To Account#:         426-402-70130 

Prepared by:  J. Stavig 

 
 
 
 

Expenditures FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 
Contractual  $4,578,752  

Supplies    

Equipment    

Travel    

Land/Structure    

Grants    

    

             Contribution FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 

Revenue    

    

Funding Source FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 

General Fund    

State/ Federal Grants  $4,578,752  

Other      

 
Additional Information 
 

Appropriating funds for Limited Notice to Proceed Phase 2, Stage 2 

 

62



 

 

September 10, 2014 

 

Rich Rogers, PE 

Public Works Director & City Engineer 

City of Cordova 

PO Box 1210 

Cordova, AK 99574 

 

Subject: Cordova Center Phase II –Phase and Funding Dates 

 

Dear Mr. Rogers, 

As requested, I have developed a schedule based on the 8 month construction period, which 

is the duration the GMP is based upon. In doing so I have been able to identify dates in which 

funding for each stage will be required (please see the attached schedule) 

As shown on the attached schedule funding will be required for the following stages at or 

before the dates listed below. 

Stage 2- will require funding approval on or by 9-17-14. Funding by this date provides 

minimal time to contract with subcontractors proceed with submittals and allocate materials 

in time for a Nov 1
st

 start date. Subcontractors requiring funding include; 

•  Mechanical 

•  Electrical 

•  Fire Suppression 

Stage 3- Funding approval will be needed on or by 10-1-14.  As stated above this date 

provides minimal time to contract with subcontractors associated with stage 3, provide 

submittals and allocate materials to maintain the 8 month schedule. Subcontractors requiring 

funding include; 

•  Mechanical 

•  Electrical 

•  Fire Suppression 

•  Fire Proofing 

•  Tape and Painting 

•  Flooring 

•  Specialized operable openings 

63



 

 

Stage 4- Requires funding approval by 11-5-14. Stage 4 includes long lead time equipment 

such as the Elevator, Kitchen Equipment, Theatrical finishes and seating. In addition to the 

long lead time of these items, submittal information will be required to properly 

prepare/prep for work taking place in prior phases. This Includes mechanical and electrical 

rough in of equipment, installation of backing for attachment and coordination of all 

impacted trades. Long lead items and subcontractors include; 

•  Mechanical 

•  Electrical 

•  Elevator 

•  Kitchen Equipment  

•  Theater Finishes and Seating 

Delay in funding can/will impact project startup, completion date and cost. 

Please contact me if you wish to discuss in more detail 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Chris Gilberto 

 

 

 

64



Construction Timeline with Gantt

Page 1 of 2Exported on September 10, 2014 7:37:48 AM AKDT

65



Page 2 of 2Exported on September 10, 2014 7:37:48 AM AKDT

66



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 09-14-41 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, 

ALASKA AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
DESIGNATED FUND AGREEMENT WITH THE ALASKA COMMUNITY 

FOUNDATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF CREATING A FUND TO RECEIVE 
CHARITABLE DONATIONS FOR THE CORDOVA CENTER CAPITAL 

CAMPAIGN 
 
 WHEREAS the Cordova Center Committee has outlined a plan for conducting a 
capital campaign to raise funds for completion of the Cordova Center; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Cordova Center Committee recommends establishing a formal 
agreement with the Alaska Community Foundation for the purpose of receiving,  recording, 
and tracking charitable contributions made to support completion of the Cordova Center; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS the Alaska Community Foundation is a professional organization with 
broad experience in managing such designated funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Alaska Community Foundation is contractually responsible for 
complying with all IRS reporting regulations and audit requirements on behalf of its fund 
designees; and 
 
 WHEREAS the City of Cordova will pay the Alaska Community Foundation a 
management fee for its services. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska authorizes the City Manager to sign a fund agreement for the purpose of 
Cordova Center capital campaign fundraising. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2014 

       

      ________________________________ 
      James Kacsh, Mayor  

    Attest: 

    ________________________________ 
      Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

 

67



2012.06.01-Form-Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement-Approved by ACF Board  Initial _______Date___/___/___ 
  Page 1 of 5 

 

 

Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement  

 

This agreement is made by and between ______________________________, ("Donor") 

and The Alaska Community Foundation, an Alaska nonprofit corporation (“ACF”). 

WHEREAS: ACF strives to respond to the changing needs of the Alaska community by building 

permanent philanthropic capital through individual, corporate and agency donations. 

WHEREAS: the Donor desires to make a lasting contribution to the Alaska community by making 

a donation to ACF through use of a designated fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and of the mutual covenants contained in 

this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Creation of Fund.  

The Donor wishes to establish a non-endowment fund and has irrevocably assigned, conveyed, 

transferred and delivered to ACF, and ACF has accepted the initial gift of 

___________________________ to be held by ACF, together with any other property ACF may 

subsequently, at any time, hold or acquire under this Agreement and all undistributed income from any 

such property, as a component fund for the uses and purposes, and subject to the terms and conditions, 

set forth in this Agreement. 

The name of the Fund shall be the ________________________________Fund (“Fund”) 

of The Alaska Community Foundation (“ACF”). 

The Fund is subject to ACF’s Gift and Fund Acceptance Policies, as amended from time to time, 

which are available upon request and are available on ACF’s website. 

2. Management of Fund.  

a. ACF shall hold, manage, invest and reinvest the Fund, collect the income, and pay and disburse 

grants from the Fund exclusively for general charitable uses and purposes, in accordance with the 

provisions specified in ACF’s Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, which 

provisions are hereby incorporated by reference and conclusively assented to and adopted. Assets of the 

Fund may be commingled for purposes of investment with other assets of ACF. For purposes of this 

instrument, the term "charitable uses and purposes" is defined as all of those activities, uses, and purposes 

described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as from time to time amended 

("Code").  

68

kristinsmith
Typewritten Text
Cordova Center

kristinsmith
Typewritten Text
$0

kristinsmith
Typewritten Text
the City of Cordova



2012.06.01-Form-Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement-Approved by ACF Board  Initial _______Date___/___/___ 
  Page 2 of 5 

b. ACF invests funds according to ACF’s approved Investment Policy, as amended from time to 

time. ACF does not predict any particular result and does not guarantee any particular result related to 

investments.  

3. Use of the Fund. 

a. ACF shall hold the Fund and make grants consistent with the charitable purposes of the 

beneficiary Agency or Agencies as identified by the Donor in Exhibit “A.” 

b. Grants to the beneficiary Agency or Agencies will be issued as per Exhibit “A.” 

c. Should the beneficiary Agency specified in Exhibit A recommend grants significantly in excess 

of the amount recommended by ACF per the spending policy of ACF or later indicate or exhibit such 

intent, ACF may, at its discretion, invest the funds in shorter term investments and apply a higher 

administrative fee to the Fund.  

4. Administrative Expenses.  

ACF shall charge the Fund fees, including investment fees and management fees according to the 

current fee schedule. Fees differ based on the type of Fund. The current amounts to be charged against the 

Fund are set forth in ACF’s Fee Policy, as amended from time to time, which is available upon request and 

is available on ACF’s web site. 

5. Fund as Component of The Alaska Community Foundation.  

The parties intend that the Fund shall be a component part of ACF, as defined In section 1.170A-

9(f)(11) of the Income Tax Regulations, and that nothing in this agreement shall affect the status of ACF 

as an organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Code and which is not a private foundation 

within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code: This agreement shall be interpreted in a manner 

consistent with the foregoing intention and to conform with the requirements of the applicable provisions 

of the federal tax laws and any regulations issued under them. 

The Fund is subject to the policies and procedures of ACF. Policies are available upon request or 

are available on ACF’s website. 

6. The Alaska Community Foundation in Good Standing.  

All transfers of property under this instrument are subject to the condition that ACF, as of the date 

of transfer, is classified in good standing by the Internal Revenue Service as an organization described in 

section 501(c)(3) of the Code and which is not a private foundation as defined in section 509(a) of the 

Code. 

7. Governing Law.  

The Fund shall be administered in and under the laws of the State of Alaska, and this instrument 

and its validity shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska. 

69



2012.06.01-Form-Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement-Approved by ACF Board  Initial _______Date___/___/___ 
  Page 3 of 5 

8. Variance Power.  

The ACF Board shall have the power, after reviewing the Articles of Incorporation of the Agency 

and dissolution provisions of the same and, as required by United States Treasury Regulations, to modify 

any restrictions or conditions on the distribution of funds for any specified charitable purpose or to 

specified organizations if, in the sole judgment of the ACF Board, (without the approval of any advisor, 

trustee, custodian or agent) such restrictions or conditions become, in effect, unnecessary, incapable of 

fulfillment or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the community or the area served. The ACF Board 

shall exercise this power consistent with the principal of maintaining, as close as possible, the original 

intent of the donor(s). 

9. Confidentiality.  

All information about donors and prospective donors shall only be disclosed within the guidelines 

of ACF’s Confidentiality and Conflict of Interest Policy, which is available upon request or is available on 

ACF’s website.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

70



2012.06.01-Form-Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement-Approved by ACF Board  Initial _______Date___/___/___ 
  Page 4 of 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Donor and The Alaska Community Foundation have executed this 

Agreement on the date appearing below their signatures. 

DONOR 

 

   
Signature 
 
   
Name 
 
   
Date 
 
   
Title/Organization (if applicable) 
 
   
Street Address 
 
   
City/State/Zip 
 
   
Phone 
 
   
Email 
 

 

THE ALASKA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

 
   
Signature 
 
   
Name 
 
   
Title 
 
   
Date 

 

 

 

71



2012.06.01-Form-Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement-Approved by ACF Board  Initial _______Date___/___/___ 
  Page 5 of 5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESIGNATED NON-ENDOWMENT FUND 

CHARITABLE PURPOSE 

 

AGENCY OR AGENCIES TO RECEIVE GRANTS FROM THE FUND 

 

The Donor wishes the following Agency or Agencies to receive grants from the Fund:  

       

 

The Donor recommends that grants from the Fund be issued as follows:  

 

___ Annual grants of $_________ until the fund is depleted; OR 

___ The beneficiary Agency may recommend a schedule for grant distributions or may request grants 

from the Fund as needed. 

 

 

72

kristinsmith
Sticky Note
This sentence would be deleted.  A paragraph about the Cordova Center being the charitable purpose for establishing this fund would be inserted.



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK 
 

DATE:   September 9, 2014 

 

TO:      Mayor and City Council 

 

SUBJECT:      Filling Council Seat E vacancy  

 

Please see the Charter reference below. The charter section is somewhat vague as to the exact 

procedure, but in the past, there has been a nomination from the floor and then a vote is conducted. 

A majority voice vote of the remaining six (i.e. 4 yeas) will then be required to fill the seat. The 

duly elected candidate will occupy seat E until the next regular election which is March 4, 2015. 

Then on March 4, 2015, seat E will be up for election for a regular three year term (as it was up in 

2015 anyway). In the event that there are multiple nominees, the City Attorney has advised that 

we use ballots to conduct the election. 

 

Charter: 

Section 2-10. - Mayor and Council: Vacancies. 

The council, by majority vote of its remaining members, shall fill vacancies in the office of mayor 

and in its own membership, to serve for the unexpired terms or until the vacancies are filled at 

elections as provided herein; provided that, if the number of vacancies in the council is such that 

the council no longer has enough members to constitute a quorum, then the remaining members 

of the council shall appoint only the minimum number of council members required to enable the 

council to have a quorum.  

If the office of mayor or council member becomes vacant prior to the filing period for the next 

regular election, and the unexpired term of such office extends beyond the time when the terms of 

the office to be filled at such election begin, then such vacancy shall be filled by the voters at such 

regular election for the unexpired term.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Move to nominate ___________ to fill the vacancy in Council 

seat E until the next regular election on March 4, 2015. 

REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority (4) votes of remaining members of Council (6).  

 

 

73



From: Stephen Phillips [mailto:stephen@cordovacomputers.com]  

Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 4:59 PM 

To: Susan Bourgeois 

Subject: Letter of interest Council Seat E 

 

Mayor James Kacsh and the City Council of the City of Cordova, 

 

As a registered voter and resident of Cordova, I’d like to express my interest in serving on the council in 

seat E for the remainder of the term. As someone who grew up in Cordova and a father of three growing 

boys, I feel the council plays an integral role in building a future for our kids as well as a great place to 

live in the present. I would enjoy having the opportunity to serve on the council and help make Cordova 

even better. 

 

Thanks,  

 

Stephen Phillips 

Chief Executive Officer 

Cordova Computers LLC 

(907) 351 9447 

stephen@CordovaComputers.com 

www.cordovacomputers.com 

 

74

tel:%28907%29%20351%209447
mailto:stephen@CordovaComputers.com
http://www.cordovacomputers.com/


Hello my name is Dan Reum and I would appreciate being nominated to fill the vacant seat for 
the remainder of the current term.   
 
I am currently serving on the Cordova School Board, if serving on the two boards disqualifies 
me so be it. 
 
I have lived in Cordova since the fall of 2010.  I would like to be considered for this position on 
the council to gain experience in city government and to help where I can. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to join the Cordova City council.  I have attached my resume for 
you to review as you consider other candidates for this council seat. 
 
Dan Reum 
 

75



76



Attn. Mayor Kacsh & City Council. 
 
I am interested in filling City Council Seat E.   
 
I want to be more involved with our city government and feel that I have a lot to contribute, if I was elected 
to Council Seat E.  I am a business owner in our community and represent a broad spectrum of our 
community members.  I have past experience attending City Council meetings and am aware of the 
issues, that the City is dealing with and will be able to come up to speed quickly. 
 
Thank you,  
Josh Hallquist 

 

77



78



79



Pending agenda:  
 

Capital Priorities List Meeting Dec 3, 2014; Mar 4, 2015; June 3, 2015; Sep 2, 2015 
 
HSB Quarterly regular meetings Oct 1, 2014; Jan 7, 2015; Apr 1, 2015; July 1, 2015 
 
Staff quarterly reports in packets: Oct 15, 2014; Jan 21, 2015; April 15, 2015; Aug 5, 2015 
 

Committees:  
 

Cordova Center Committee: Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, Randy Robertson, Kristin Carpenter, 
Native Village of Eyak Representative, Chamber of Commerce Representative, Business 
Community Representative, PWSSC Representative, Stage of the Tides Representative. 

 
Fisheries Advisory Committee: David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 

Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Chair, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; 
and Jeremy Botz, ADF&G  

  
Cordova Trails Committee: Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, VACANCY, Toni Godes, and David 

Zastrow  
 

Calendars:  
 

3 months of calendars are attached hereto  
September 2014; October 2014; November 2014 

80



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat  

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

1 

 

Labor Day City Hall 

Offices Closed 

2 

First Day of School 

for students 

 

3 

 

6:45 pub hrg LMR 

7:00 reg mtg LMR 

4 5 6 

7 Jim Kallander memori-

al service and celebra-

tion of life CHS 2PM 

then Reluctant Fisher-

man following 

8 9 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

10 

 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 

 

7:00 reg mtg LMR 

18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 

 

7:00 Spec Sch Bd 

HSL 

25 26 27 

28 29 30    Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

September 2014 

81



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat  

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

  1 

 

6:45 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:00 reg mtg LMR 

2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 

 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

9 10 11 

12 13 14 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

15 

 

6:45 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:00 reg mtg LMR 

16 17 

 

Alaska Day City Hall 

Offices Closed 

18 

19 20 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

21 

 

 

 

———————— 

22 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

23 

 

 

 

———————— 

24 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

25 

26 27 

 

 

 

———————— 

28 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

29 

 

 

 

———————— 

30 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

31 

 

 

 

———————— 

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

October 2014 

82



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat  

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

     1 

2 3 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

4 

Election Day  

Polls open at LMR 

7a—8p 

5 

6:45 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:00 reg mtg LMR 

6 7 8 

9 10 

 

11  Veterans’ Day 

City Hall 

Offices Closed 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

12 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 

6:45 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:00 reg mtg LMR 

20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 

Thanksgiving City 

Hall Offices Closed 

28 

Thanksgiving City 

Hall Offices Closed 

29 

30      Location Legend 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

November 2014 

83



seat/length of term email Date Elected Term Expires

Mayor: James Kacsh March 5, 2013 March-16

3 years Mayor@cityofcordova.net

Council members:

Seat A: Kristin Carpenter March 5, 2013 March-16

3 years CouncilSeatA@cityofcordova.net

Seat B: Timothy Joyce March 4, 2014 March-17

3 years CouncilSeatB@cityofcordova.net March 14, 2013 filled vacancy

August 2, 2012 appt to A

Seat C: Tom Bailer March 4, 2014 March-17

3 years CouncilSeatC@cityofcordova.net

Seat D: Bret Bradford March 6, 2012 March-15

3 years CouncilSeatD@cityofcordova.net March 3, 2009

Seat E: vacant March-15

3 years CouncilSeatE@cityofcordova.net

Seat F: David Reggiani, Vice Mayor March 5, 2013 March-16

3 years CouncilSeatF@cityofcordova.net March 2, 2010

March 3, 2009 1 yr trm

Seat G: James Burton March 5, 2013 March-16

3 years CouncilSeatG@cityofcordova.net

length of term Date Elected Term Expires

3 years Daniel Reum March 6, 2012 March-15

3 years Tammy Altermott March 5, 2013 March-16

3 years Peter Hoepfner March 6, 2012 March-15

March 3, 2009

March 7, 2006

3 years Sheryl Glasen March 4, 2014 March-17

3 years Barb Jewell, President March 5, 2013 March-16

3 years Bret Bradford (appointed, non-voting) April-14 March-15

April-13

August-12

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Wendy Ranney April-13 November-15

3years Shannon Mallory November-13 November-16

3 years Krysta Williams November-11 November-14

3 years Kay Groff December-11 November-14

January-09

3 years Mary Anne Bishop, Chair November-13 November-16

November-10

November-06

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL - ELECTED

& APPOINTED MEMBERS OF CITY BOARDS and COMMISSIONS

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA – ELECTED OFFICIALS

SCHOOL BOARD - ELECTED

LIBRARY BOARD - APPOINTED

84



length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Kristin Carpenter, President with Council office

3 years Tom Bailer with Council office

3 years Tim Joyce with Council office

3 years James Burton with Council office

3 years Bret Bradford with Council office

3 years vacant with Council office

3 years David Reggiani with Council office

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Allen Roemhildt January-14 November-16

3 years Scott Pegau December-11 November-14

3 years John Baenen December-12 November-15

3 years Tom Bailer, Chair November-13 November-16

December-11

November-08

3 years Tom McGann December-11 November-14

April-11

3 years John Greenwood December-12 November-15

November-09

3 years David Reggiani April-13 March-14

April-12

April-11

April-10

length of term Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Robert Beedle January-14 November-17

3 years Greg LoForte February-13 November-16

January-10

January-07

3 years Max Wiese January-14 November-17

March-11

3 years Ken Jones February-13 November-16

3 years James Burton, Chair July-14 November-15

April-13

length of term chair vacant Date Appointed Term Expires

3 years Kara Johnson December-12 November-14

3 years Miriam Dunbar August-14 November-15

3 years Wendy Ranney August-14 November-15

3 years Stephen Barnes December-12 November-15

3 years Marvin VanDenBroek February-14 November-16

3 years Karen Hallquist November-13 November-16

3 years Dave Zastrow September-14 November-14

HARBOR COMMISSION - APPOINTED

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION - APPOINTED

CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER – HEALTH SERVICES BOARD - with Council election

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION - APPOINTED

85


	P& Z res 14-04 CIP list
	ORD 1121 all
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK

	OT lot 3-5, blk 8 all
	RES 09-14-39 all
	ADP2668.tmp
	City of Cordova     Cordova Chamber of Commerce
	Attn: City Manager    Attn: Jennifer Gibbins
	Cordova, Alaska  99574     Cordova, Alaska 99574

	CITY:     CITY OF CORDOVA


	Minutes 09-03-14 Public Hearing
	Minutes 09-03-14 Regular Meeting
	CC report 09-17
	2009 City facilities committee history
	Res 09-14-37 & 09-14-38 all
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK

	Res 09-14-40 all
	CITY OF CORDOVA
	Office of City Manager

	att to 09-14-40 Funding Dates Letter.pdf
	CCC Ph  II - Phase  Funding Dates Letter
	Construction Timeline with Gantt


	Resolution 09-14-41 all
	att to 09-14-41 AK comm fndtn.pdf
	Designated Non-Endowment Fund Agreement
	U1. Creation of FundU.
	U2. Management of FundU.
	U3. Use of the FundU.
	U4. Administrative Expenses.U
	U5. Fund as Component of The Alaska Community FoundationU.
	U6. The Alaska Community Foundation in Good StandingU.
	U7. Governing LawU.
	U8. Variance PowerU.
	U9. ConfidentialityU.
	DONOR
	Name
	Date
	Title/Organization (if applicable)
	Street Address
	City/State/Zip
	Phone
	Email
	THE ALASKA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
	Name
	Title
	Date
	EXHIBIT A
	DESIGNATED NON-ENDOWMENT FUND
	AGENCY OR AGENCIES TO RECEIVE GRANTS FROM THE FUND


	Filling vacancy item all
	A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CMC, CITY CLERK

	PA, C & AEOL
	09-17-14 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA
	F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS
	N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS
	O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	P. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	18. Council Comments
	Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION


	2009 City Building Committee compilation of resolution/memo/minutes/report, etc

